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INTERNATIONAL 
PRESIDENT
Ulrik Lauridsen

Dear Members and Friends of Y’s Men International,

As we close another impactful year, I reflect on the 
journey we have taken together. It has been a year 
marked by dedication, resilience, and innovation as 
we continued to live our mission of service and global 
community building.

Strengthening Community Through Collaboration
The spirit of collaboration has been a central theme 

this year. We have seen remarkable joint efforts across 
different Areas and clubs to address critical issues, 
such as climate change, food security, and health and 
well-being. I am deeply inspired by the innovative 
projects initiated, such as the virtual summit “Beyond 
Limits 2024”, organised in the Caribbean. This summit 
brought together voices from diverse backgrounds 
to tackle issues that align with the Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs) of Zero Hunger, Climate 
Action, and Good Health and Well-being. Events like 
these underscore our commitment to global service 
and solidarity.

Promoting Inclusivity and Diversity
Inclusivity remains a core value for our organisation. 

This year, we took deliberate steps to reevaluate 
and strengthen our relationship with the YMCA, 
reflecting our shared goal of community service. By 
building organisational capacity and undertaking new 
initiatives, we continue to evolve into a more open 
and diverse community.

Engaging the Youth and Building Capacity
Several Areas, including India and the United 

States, have made strides toward recruiting 
younger members, providing training, and fostering 
environments where they can thrive. We must 
continue this momentum, exploring new ways to 
reach and inspire the next generation, from schools to 
universities, to ensure our sustainability and growth.

A Year of Learning and Adaptation
The year has not been without challenges. Yet, 

we found ways to innovate, adapt and unify for the 
betterment of our movement. We are learning to 
operate in a modern, digital-first world, while still 
holding true to our values.

Unity Through Service and Solidarity
Service remains at the heart of what we do. From 

emergency relief funds provided to USA, Chile, Brazil 
and Kenya, support to numerous Time of Fast projects 
and the formation of new International Brother Club 
relationships, we have honoured our mission. I am 
grateful to every member who has contributed to 
these efforts, particularly those who continue to give 
their time and resources to serve their communities.

Looking Forward
As we move into the next year, I encourage all of 

us to build on these foundations. Let us continue 
to promote inclusivity, engage the youth, and find 
new ways to serve our communities. Let us remain 
adaptable, learning from the past and embracing the 
future with hope and determination. Our mission to 
create a ‘better world for all’ is more relevant than 
ever, and I am confident that together, we can achieve 
it.

I want to thank our Area Presidents, International 
Executive Officers and every club member for their 
tireless efforts and dedication. Your passion and 
commitment drive this organisation forward. Let us 
continue to smile and embrace good communication 
as we let the light of YMI shine.

With gratitude and best wishes,

Ulrik Lauridsen
International President 2023/24

President’s 
Message 
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INTERNATIONAL 
SECRETARY 
GENERAL

Jose Varghese

Y’s Men International has proudly completed 102 
years of service as a global movement, dedicated to 
serving communities and supporting the YMCA as 
a mission partner worldwide. Guided by the theme 
“Let Your Light Shine,” the 2023/24 year was another 
historic chapter in the story of YMI, which was marked 
by the official opening of the new International 
Headquarters in Geneva. Our commitment to fostering 
international collaboration and driving organisational 
growth remains at the forefront of our efforts as a key 
component of our mission.

Throughout the year, we celebrated several 
significant events, including the International Council 
Meeting in Kenya, the International RDE Summit and 
Extraordinary ICM in Denmark, and Area Conventions 
held in Africa, the Asia Pacific, Korea, and India. 
Additionally, the Service Club Leaders Conference 
in Chicago presented valuable opportunities to 
enhance international service clubs’ engagement 
and cooperation. These gatherings exemplify our 
dedication to fostering fellowship and promoting 
meaningful change worldwide.

As of this year, our paid membership stands at 
21,793 individuals. It is encouraging to report that 
83 new clubs have joined the Y’s Men International 
family, including in new countries, such as South 
Africa, Botswana, Kuwait, and Rwanda, aligning with 
our goal to establish a presence in 100 countries. 

However, a concerning trend has been observed 
in a continuing decline in international programme 
contributions. Despite this, YMI was able to donate 
CHF 10,000 from the Alexander Scholarship Fund 
to support the World YMCA’s National Secretaries 
Training which took place in Kosovo in March 2024. 
Additionally, five BF ambassadors from Africa, Latin 
America, India, Korea and Europe were able to travel 
to Italy, United Arab Emirates, Central Southern 
Europe, Canada and Korea respectively.

To further foster global friendship among clubs, 
two International Brother Club relations and one 
Triangle Club relation were established this year. The 
International Council also approved 10 new Time of 
Fast Projects, with eight successfully launched. The 
Time of Fast fund also extended support to victims of 

wildfires in Hawaii and Chile, as well as the floods in 
Nairobi, under the IP discretionary emergency relief 
fund.

In compliance with Swiss regulations and to maintain 
our international banking operations and tax-exempt 
privileges, we made amendments to our International 
Constitution and submitted an application for entry 
into the Swiss commercial registry. 

Operational expenditures remained within budget. 
However, we incurred additional costs for legal 
assistance related to the constitutional amendments 
required by Swiss law. A reduction in dues income 
associated with the declining membership impacted 
overall operational income, but fortunately, higher 
returns from our investments led to an increase in our 
total assets, now valued at CHF 6.2 million.
In addition to these governance challenges, we faced 
unexpected difficulty due to IPE Charming Shen’s 
sudden health crisis which caused him to be unable 
to assume to the responsibilities of International 
President.  

Significant time and effort were also dedicated to 
organising and promoting the 74th International 
Convention in Chiang Mai, Thailand. 

This annual report includes the financial report, 
audited statements of accounts, and recognition of 
the various awards conferred upon our leaders and 
members for their dedicated service and contributions. 
The report also includes the newly amended Articles 
of Association.

We extend our heartfelt thanks to all IEOs, ICMs, 
ISDs, committees, RDs, DGs, club leaders, and staff 
for their exceptional leadership and unwavering 
commitment to igniting the spirit of Y’s Men and 
leading the movement with dedication and passion. 

Jose Varghese 
International Secretary General 

Executive 
Summary
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2023/24 HIGHLIGHTS

Annual International Council Meeting

The annual International Council Meeting was held in Nairobi, Kenya from 22 to 25 July 2023. It 
was a historic meeting, marking the first international meeting held in Africa in more than 25 years. 
The meeting was warmly and effectively hosted by Kenya District with support of the Nairobi YMCA. 
Participants enjoyed an opportunity to visit the community centre at the YMCA Thika, partially 
funded by a Time of Fast project grant in 2013. A tour of the 
facilities and an explanation of the current and future activities 
were provided. A ceremony recognising contributors to the 
project and inaugurating the facility was conducted.

International Council members considered 39 motions, 
approving 35. Two motions were withdrawn. Two motions, both 
related to extending dues discounts for young members, were 
defeated.  

Over the rest of the year, Council Members were requested to 
vote electronically eight times. Two ballots related to the nomination of candidates for International 
President Elect 2024/25. The six other motions were approved. 

International Headquarters
New Headquarters
The new 134 m2 office in Geneva, Switzerland, purchased in 

2022, was officially opened on 27 September 2023 by IP Ulrik 
Lauridsen. The event was attended by various YMI and YMCA 
dignitaries, and local guests. 

iMIS
Over the past year, 

the transition from the 
Portalbuzz membership 
management system 
to iMIS marked a 

significant upgrade to our digital capabilities. After a decade of reliance 
on Portalbuzz, its discontinuation by the parent company prompted the search for more advanced solutions to 
meet growing operational needs. Following an extensive review, iMIS was selected as the replacement, a top-
tier Engagement Management System designed specifically for non-profits and associations, aimed at enhancing 

efficiency and member engagement.

Simply Voting
In 2023/24, a new voting system, Simply Voting, was introduced 

following the discontinuation of Scytl’s ‘Invote Now’ platform, 
which had been used in international elections. After a thorough 

evaluation of alternative options, Simply Voting was selected for its robust security features, cost-effectiveness, 
and compliance with stringent data protection regulations.
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Amendments to the International Constitution

Following the rejection of YMI’s application for entry into the Swiss commercial registry (a 
new regulation for associations domiciled in Switzerland that collect and distribute assets 
internationally), the following actions were undertaken to address the issue during the 2023/24 
year: 
 
  •   Discussions with commercial registry officials
•	 Identification and engagement of a Swiss law firm specialising in association law.
•	 Drafting amendments in consultation with Constitution Review Committee Chair, Silvya Reyes 

de Croci, and Modernising the Constitution and Organisational Structure Task Force Chair, 
Bjørn Arve Bentsen.

•	 Circulation of draft documents and explanations to the Constitution Review Committee  	   
members, incorporating their feedback.

•	 Submission of the amendments, with explanations, to the International Council for deliberation 
at the Extraordinary International Council Meeting on 24 March 2024 in Denmark, resulting in 
unanimous approval by all 10 council members present.

•	 Sharing of the proposed changes with participants of the International RDE Summit.
•	 Finalisation and refinement of the International Constitution for clarity and consistency.
•	 Orientation sessions for Regions/Areas.
•	 Submission of materials to the clubs for voting.
•	 Approval of the amended constitution.
•	 Resubmission of the documents to the commercial registry.
 

The 2024 amendments received overwhelming support, with 98.9% of participating clubs voting in 
favour. This strong endorsement reflects a unified commitment to modernising and adapting the 
organisation’s structure to secure its future. The Modernising the Constitution and Organisational 
Structure Task Force will continue its efforts in 2024/25 to ensure YMI’s framework aligns with 
current conditions. 
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Extraordinary International Council Meeting & 
International RDE Summit

In March 2024, the fourth International RDE Summit was organised in the home city of the International 
President who was happy to welcome more than 50 participants representing all eight Areas and 31 Regions. 
The programme included presentations on effective administration and operation of Regional projects, YMCA 
partnership and fundraising strategies, Regional project implementation and Extension strategy. There was 
discussion on CPE Institute, Y’s Menettes Clubs, Y’s Youth Clubs and Extension Beyond Borders, in addition to 
the standard orientation for Regional Directors Elect.

The RDE Summit was preceded by a one-day extraordinary Council Meeting to discuss and vote on the 
proposed changes to the International Constitution.

Club President Elect (CPE) Institute
In 2024/25 three Zoom sessions were organised on the 

following topics:  Membership Engagement, Club Fundraising, 
and Communicating YMI. The sessions were well-attended and 
according to subsequent feedback, appreciated. In the second 
semester plans were developed to hold an in-person conclave 
in August 2024 in Chiang Mai, Thailand before the International 
Convention. One goal for the conclave was to begin the process of 
identifying trainers for Area and local level institutes. 
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Emergency Response

The frequency of major natural disasters is increasing, and YMI continues to respond. In 2023/24, the 
International President Discretionary Fund used Time of Fast money to:

•	 Support to the victims of wildfires in Hawaii (USD 5,000)
•	 Support to the victims of Chilean wildfires Chile (USD 3,000) 
•	 Provide flood Relief in Nairobi, Kenya (USD 3,000)
•	 Provide flood Relief in Brazil (USD 3,000) 

International Convention 2024 Planning

Following the withdrawal of hosting offers from Bangalore and later, the Philippines, alternative 
arrangements were necessary for the 2024 International Convention. After exploring various options, 
a solution was found through the support of the YMCA and the Y’s Men’s Club of Chiangmai, with 
administrative assistance from IHQ. An innovative approach was adopted, introducing a unique 
programme that revitalised the traditional IC agenda by emphasising festival fellowship. Regular 
planning meetings took place throughout the year, culminating in a final site visit by the International 
Host Committee Chair and the International Secretary General in May 2024.



YMI PRESENCE

Per the February 2024 reporting, there were 
1,467 affiliated clubs. By June 2024, there was a 

YMI presence in 76 countries, four new.
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Eighty-three new clubs were chartered. Sixty-
five were closed.
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India (IND)MEMBERS
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Latin America (LAM)MEMBERS
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NEW CLUBS 

Summary of

New Club Area Region Country Sponsor
YSC Kakamega Africa Africa Southeast Kenya YSC Kitui
YMC Nairobi Metro Africa Africa Southeast Kenya YMC Nairobi

YSC South Africa Africa Africa Southeast South Africa YMC Nairobi

YMC Kathmandu Asia Pacific Southeast Asia Nepal YSC Lumbini

YMC New Territories North Asia Pacific Southeast Asia Hong Kong YMC Kowloon-Peninsula

YMC Serve People-Kawasoti Asia Pacific Southeast Asia Nepal YMC Singapore Beta Chapter

YMC Tsuen Wan Metro Asia Pacific Southeast Asia Hong Kong YMC New Tsuen Wan

YMC Dambulla Green Asia Pacific Sri Lanka Sri Lanka YMC Colombo

YWC Senkadagala Asia Pacific Sri Lanka Sri Lanka YMC Young Moratuwa

YMC Deva Europe Denmark Romania YMC Vitus Bering, Horsens

YMWC Peresecina Europe Denmark Moldova Denmark Region
YWC Amaravati Blood of Christ 
Episcopal Church India Central India India YMC Greater Guntur

YWC Good Works - Hyderabad India Central India India YMC Thummagappu (Rural)

YMC Greater Guntur India Central India India YMC Visakhapatnam

YWC Guntur India Central India India YMC Greater Guntur

YWC Nalgonda India Central India India YMC Thummagappu (Rural)

YMC Narsaraopet India Central India India YMC Greater Guntur

YMC Rajahmundry India Central India India YMC Thummagappu (Rural)

YMWC Repalle India Central India India YMC Greater Guntur

YMC Adoor Kings India Central 
Travancore India YMC Adoor

YMWC Chennampallil India Central 
Travancore India YMC Ezhamkulam

YMC Kadampanad India Central 
Travancore India YMC Adoor

YMC Konni East India Central 
Travancore India YMC Konny (Konni)

YMC Kottayam East India Central 
Travancore India YMC Kottayam West

YMC Peringanad India Central 
Travancore India YMC Adoor

YMC Pizhaku India Central 
Travancore India YMC Pala

YMC Anachal India Mid West India India YMC Adimaly Town

YMC Botswana India Mid West India Botswana YMC Oonnukal

YMC Emerald Varapetty India Mid West India India YMC Pothanicad Diamonds

YMC Ernakulam Diamond City India Mid West India India YMC Ernakulam

YMC Guwahati India Mid West India India YMC Oonnukal

YMC Hirange Kattappana India Mid West India India YMC Nedumkandam

YWC Idukki Hill Top India Mid West India India YMC Oonnukal 16



New Club Area Region Country Sponsor
YMC Inchoor India Mid West India India YMC Karukadom
YMC Kakkanad Infocity 
Royals India Mid West India India YMC SOS Odakali

YMC Kothamangalam Stars India Mid West India India YMC Nellimattom Diamonds
YMC Kothamangalam 
Urban India Mid West India India YMC Nellimattom Diamonds

YMC Kurupumpady Central India Mid West India India YMC Oonnukal
YMC Kuttampuzha India Mid West India India YMC Oonnukal
YMC Mulavoor India Mid West India India YMC Oonnukal
YMC Peace River Region 
Canada India Mid West India Canada YMC Oonnukal

YMC Perumbavoor Town India Mid West India India YMC Nirmala Malamury
YMC Kuwait India Middle East Kuwait YMC Fujairah

YMC Ras Al Khaimah India Middle East United Arab 
Emirates YMC Sharjah

YMC Cuttack Millennium India North, East & 
Northeast India India YMC Cuttack

YMC Gonikoppal India South Central 
India India YMC Bangalore

YMC Nambiyur White 
Rocks India South Central 

India India YMC Gobi Galaxy

YWC Oasis Bangalore India South Central 
India India YMC Bangalore Madiwala

YMC Sivakasi Queens India South Central 
India India YMC Sivakasi

YMC Avani Chadhurvethi 
International School - 
Chennai

India South India India YMC Madras Legends

YMC Bannari India South India India YMC Sathyamangalam
YMWC D.G. Pudur India South India India YMC Sathyamangalam
YMC Lotus Group - 
Chennai India South India India YMC Madras Legends

YMC Madurai India South India India YMC Virudhunagar
YSC Spick & Span - 
Chennai India South India India YMC Madras Legends

YMC Kollam Pearl Power India South West 
India India YMC Kollam Cashew City

YMC Kumari Iyal Mantam India South West 
India India YMC Nagarcoil Star

YMC Marthandam Star India South West 
India India YMC Nagarcoil Star

YMC Nagercoil New Star India South West 
India India YMC Nagarcoil Star

YMC Nagercoil Star   
Builders India South West 

India India YMC Nagarcoil Star

YMC Nagercoil Star Kings India South West 
India India YMC Nagarcoil Star

YSC Quilon Elite India South West 
India India YMC Quilon

YMC Theresa, 
Sasthamcotta India South West 

India India YMC Kunnathoor Royal
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New Club Area Region Country Sponsor

YMC Travancore Glocal India South West 
India India YMC Vattiyoorkav

YMC Trivandrum Central India South West 
India India YMC Trivandrum Kowdiar

YMC Trivandrum East India South West 
India India YMC Vattiyoorkav

YMWC Trivandrum Yosha India South West 
India India YMC Trivandrum 

Cosmopolitan
YMC Ambalavayal India West India India YMC Bathery Town
YMC Kalliyasseri India West India India YMC Parassinikadavu
YMWC Kunnamkulam Town India West India India YMC Kunnamkulam
YMC Perumbadave India West India India YMC Vellora Kariappally

YMC Busan Connect Korea Korea Bu-Ul-
Gyeong South Korea YMC Mil Yang

YMC Jeonju Mugunghwa Korea Korea Chonbuk South Korea YMC Jeonju Seaum
YMWC Jeonju Vision Korea Korea Chonbuk South Korea YWC Jeonju Haengbuk

YWC Kampala Uplift Korea Korea Daegu 
Gyeongbuk Uganda YMC Daegu World

YMC Katete Maize Milling Korea Korea Daegu 
Gyeongbuk Zambia YMC Daegu World

YMWC Kigali Rise To Grow Korea Korea Daegu 
Gyeongbuk Rwanda YMC Daegu World

YMC Incheon Cheongra Korea Korea Incheon South Korea YMC Sae Inchon
YWC Incheon Namdong Korea Korea Incheon South Korea YMC Inchon - Silver

YMWC Muan Oryong Korea Korea 
Jeonnam

South 
Korea YMC Mooanseung Dal

YMWC Suncheon 
Donghaeng Korea Korea 

Jeonnam
South 
Korea YWC Gwang - Yang Vision

YSC Gwangju Gaon Korea Korea South South 
Korea YWC Gwangju Lilac

YSC Daejeon Seven Korea Korea West South 
Korea YMC Daejeon-Immanuel

18



YMI Governance

Leaders 2023/24

Immediate Past International President

Dr Kim Sang-chae
Korea  Area
Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong Region

International President Elect 

Mr Ching-Ming (Charming) Shen
Asia Pacific Area
Taiwan Region

International Treasurer

Mr T.M. Jose
India Area
West India Region

International Executive Officers

International President 

Mr Ulrik Lauridsen
Europe Area
Denmark Region
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Afica Area President 

Mr Victor Basom Dilli Jatau
Africa Area
Northwest Africa Region

International Secretary General

Mr Jose Varghese
International Headquarters / Geneva

Africa Area Young International Council Member

Ms Mirriam Kaguri
Africa Area
Africa Southeast Region

International Council Members

International Secretary General

Asia Pacific Area President 

Mrs Keiko Tonegawa

Asia Pacific Area
Japan East Region

Asia Pacific Area President Elect

Ms Yan Yan (Joan) Wong

Asia Pacific Area
Southeast Asia Region
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Canada / Caribbean Area President

Dr Sandra R. Hamilton
Canada/Caribbean Areea
Caribbean Region

Europe Area President (until 2 October 2023)

Mrs Piia Karro-Selg
Europe  Area
Finland Anticum Region 

Europe Area President (from 3 October 2023)

Mr Villy Moelgaard
Europe Area
Denmark Region

Europe Area President Elect

India Area President 

Mr Mr Ådne Wesnes
Europe Area
Norway Region

Mr V.A.A. Shukur
India Area
South West India Region

International Council Members
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India Area International Council Member  (until 1 September 2023)

Mr I.C. Raju
India Area
Mid West India Region

I

India Area President Elect 
India Area Council Member (from 2 September 2023)

Mr V.S. Radhakrishnan
India Area
South West India Area

International Council Members

India Area Young International Council Member (until 1 September 2023)

Mrs Niranjana Bimal
India Area
South West West India Region

India Area Young International Council Member (from 2 September 2023)

Mr Nithin J.R.
India Area
South West India Area

Korea Area President 

Mr Han Il – wook
Korea Area
Korea West Region
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Latin America Area President

Ms Edilene Gonçalves (Laura)
Latin America Area
Brazil Region

United States Area President

Mr Mr Douglas Jones
United States Area
Sout Pacific Region

International Council Members

Korea Area President Elect (from 3 February 2024)

Mr Park Jong-an
Korea Area
Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk Region
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INTERNATIONAL ELECTIONS
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International President Elect 2024/25
International President 2025/2026 

Mr Shanvaskhan Abdul Kader 
India Area
South West India Region

Area President Elect/International Council Member Elect 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2025
Area President/International Council Member 1 July 2025 – 30 June 2027

Ms Cliffonie Brown
Canada/Caribbean Area
Caribbean Region (Jamaica)

Area President Elect/International Council Member Elect 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2025
Area President/International Council Member 1 July 2025 – 30 June 2027

Dr Tadashi Tanoue
Asia Pacific Area
Japan West Region

International Council Member 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2026

Mr Jens Bysko
Europe Area
Denmark Region 

International Council Member (Young) 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2026

Ms Mila Pavlova
Europe Area
Denmark Region(Bulgaria)
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International Council Member Elect 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2025
International Council Member 1 July 2025 – 30 June 2027

Mr Babu George Puthenpurayil
India Area
Mid West India Region

Area President Elect/ International Council Member 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2025
Area President/International Council Member from 1 July 2025 until 30 June 2026

Mr Park Cha-sang*
Korea Area
Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong Region

International Council Member 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2026

Mr Thomas Lukose P.
India Area
South West India Region

International Council Member 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2026

Mr Jin Joon-kyo*
Korea Area
Korea Jeonnam Region 

Area President Elect/International Council Member Elect 1 July 2024 – 30 June 2025
Area President/International Council Member from 1 July 2025 until 30 June 2027

Mr Joseph Kanjamala
United States Area
North Atlantic Region

* Due to an inability by Korea Area to provide suitable candidates for its Council seats at the traditional 
election time, Mr Park Cha-sang and Mr Jin Joon-kyo were elected by Korean Area in two separate, 
internally organised ballots. Mr Jin was elected in March 2024 and Mr Park in June 2024. Mr Jin resigned 
from his ICM position in June 2024. Per Korea Area Council decision his seat is filled by Immediate Past 
Area President (IPAP) Han Il-wook untl another election is condcuted to replace Mr Jin. 
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INTERNATIONAL PROGRAMMES
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IN 203/24, Y’s Men Internatinal supported the World YMCA NGS Meeting held in Kosovo with USD  10, 000 
and a decision was made to cover the Chiang Mai International Convention registration costs of applying YMCA 
current and former staff.

Alexander Scholarship Fund (ASF)

Building Fellowship (BF)
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The following successfully completed BF ambassador trips:
•	 Joan Mati (AFR to EUR)
•	 Natali Mendoza (LAM to Middle East Region, IND) 
•	 Ajith Babu (IND to EUR) 
•	 Han Ki-Duk (KOR to CAC)
•	 Earling Birbak (EUR to KOR) 

Previously approved ambassadors, Jacob Varghese and Ieva Vibente, were finally use their grants to attend the 
YMI Festival in Chiang Mai and presiding conclave for club leaders.

Previously approved ambassadors, Jacob Varghese and Ieva Vibente, being able to finally use their grants to 
attend the YMI Festival in Chiang Mai and presiding conclave for club leaders.

Eighteen convention grant applications to attend IC 2024 in Chiang Mai were received, and the Building 
Fellowship Expenditures Committee (BFEC) decided to assign grant parameters that would allow the maximum 
number of participants to attend. Applications received for all four Cultural Fellowship grants and corresponding 
ambassadors recommended by the BFEC.

A big thank you goes to Y’s Men International for 
the Building Fellowship programme. This programme 
provides the opportunity for members to be curious 

not only about one another but also curious about the 
differences and similarities across our cultures. It is a 

great programme.

A big thank you also goes to Mr Rim Han-tai for a very 
well planned trip around the Korean Area. There was not 
a day, not an overnight stay and not a transport that was 

missed. Everything was arranged and well-planned in 
advance. This was also very visible on the last day where 
we were handed a diary in pictures showing the content 

of  each individual day. Thank you.

Erling Birkbak,  BF Ambassador to Korea
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The following successfully completed BF ambassador trips:
•	 Joan Mati (AFR to EUR)
•	 Natali Mendoza (LAM to Middle East Region, IND) 
•	 Ajith Babu (IND to EUR) 
•	 Han Ki-Duk (KOR to CAC)
•	 Earling Birbak (EUR to KOR) 

Previously approved ambassadors, Jacob Varghese and Ieva Vibente, were finally use their grants to attend the 
YMI Festival in Chiang Mai and presiding conclave for club leaders.

Award Area Region Club
Bronze AFR Afirca Southeast Nairobi
Bronze ASP Australia Adelaide
Bronze ASP Australia Broken Hill
Bronze ASP Australia Port Pirie
Bronze ASP Australia Eaglehawk
Bronze ASP Japan East Nagano
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Hachioji
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Musashinotama
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Nishi
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Sunrise
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Tampopo
Bronze ASP Japan East Atami-Glory
Bronze ASP Japan East Fuji
Bronze ASP Japan East Itoh
Bronze ASP Japan East Numazu
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokachi
Bronze ASP Japan East Greater Ishinomaki
Bronze ASP Japan East Morioka
Bronze ASP Japan East Chiba
Bronze ASP Japan East Kawagoe
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokorozawa
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Green
Bronze ASP Japan East Kamakura
Bronze ASP Japan East Yokohama
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Mukade
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Setagaya
Bronze ASP Japan East Tokyo-Tama-Smile
Gold ASP Japan East Kofu 21
Gold ASP Japan East Atami
Silver ASP Japan East Tokyo-Koto
Silver ASP Japan East Tokyo
Bronze ASP Japan West Hikone Chateau
Bronze ASP Japan West Nagahama
Bronze ASP Japan West Ohmi-Hachiman
Bronze ASP Japan West Nagoya
Bronze ASP Japan West Nara
Bronze ASP Japan West Osaka Senboku
Bronze ASP Japan West Osaka-South
Bronze ASP Japan West Wakayama
Bronze ASP Japan West Wakayama Kinokawa
Bronze ASP Japan West Kyoto Able
Bronze ASP Japan West Kyoto Maple

Building Fellowship Awards 
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Award Area Region Club
Bronze ASP Japan West Kyoto Prince
Bronze ASP Japan West Kyoto Rakuchu
Bronze ASP Japan West Kyoto Well
Bronze ASP Japan West Fukuoka-Chuo
Bronze ASP Japan West Kagoshima
Bronze ASP Japan West Kumamoto
Bronze ASP Japan West Kumamoto Minami
Bronze ASP Japan West Kumamoto Musashi
Bronze ASP Japan West Kumamoto Nishi
Bronze ASP Japan West Yatsushiro
Bronze ASP Japan West Osaka
Bronze ASP Japan West Osaka Nakanoshima
Bronze ASP Japan West Osaka-Nishi
Bronze ASP Japan West Osaka-Tosabori
Bronze ASP Japan West Hiroshima
Bronze ASP Japan West Kure
Bronze ASP Japan West Kobe
Bronze ASP Japan West Nishinomiya
Bronze ASP Japan West Takarazuka
Bronze ASP Japan West Okayama
Gold ASP Japan West Kyoto Global
Gold ASP Japan West Kyoto West
Gold ASP Japan West Kyoto Wings
Gold ASP Japan West Kyoto-Palace
Gold ASP Japan West Kyoto-Tops
Silver ASP Japan West Kyoto Capital
Silver ASP Japan West Kyoto ToBe
Silver ASP Japan West Kyoto Zero
Silver ASP Japan West Kumamoto Janes
Silver ASP Japan West Kobe Port
Bronze ASP Southeast Asia Singapore Beta
Bronze ASP Sri Lanka Young Moratuwa
Bronze ASP Taiwan Keelung
Bronze ASP Taiwan Taipei A-List
Bronze ASP Taiwan Taipei Union
Bronze ASP Taiwan Taipei-Alpha
Bronze ASP Taiwan Taipei-Beta
Bronze ASP Taiwan Taipei-Central
Bronze ASP Taiwan Taoyuan
Bronze ASP Taiwan Kaohsiung
Bronze ASP Taiwan Kaohsiung Forever Young
Bronze ASP Taiwan Pingtung
Bronze ASP Taiwan Pingtung-Wandan
Bronze ASP Taiwan Tainan 32



Award Area Region Club
Gold ASP Taiwan Taichung Ever Flow
Gold ASP Taiwan Taichung Everlife
Gold ASP Taiwan Tsaotun
Gold ASP Taiwan Taipei-Downtown
Silver ASP Taiwan Taichung - Evergreen
Silver ASP Taiwan Taichung Ever Nice
Silver ASP Taiwan Taichung EverGrace
Silver ASP Taiwan Taichung Great Vision
Silver ASP Taiwan Taipei New Century
Silver ASP Taiwan Taipei-Bridges
Silver ASP Taiwan Kaohsiung-The Port
Bronze CAC Martimes Cumberland
Bronze CAC Martimes Sydney-Riverview
Gold CAC Martimes Charlottetown
Silver CAC Martimes Woodstock
Bronze EUR Finland/Balticum Vantaa
Bronze EUR Finland/Balticum Wellamo Lahti
Bronze KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong Busan Connect
Bronze KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong Ka Ko Pa
Silver KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong Gim Hae Cure
Bronze KOR Korea Chonbuk Jeonju Hyuksin
Bronze KOR Korea Chonbuk Jeonju Poongnam
Bronze KOR Korea Chonbuk Jeonju Jeonil
Bronze KOR Korea Chonbuk Jungeup Sam Gol
Gold KOR Korea Chonbuk Jeonju Jeonjin
Bronze KOR Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk Taegu Omega
Silver KOR Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk Taegu Alpha
Bronze KOR Korea Jeonnam Hae Nam Ddang-kut
Bronze KOR Korea Jeonnam Mokpo Bipa
Bronze KOR Korea Jeonnam Mokpo Sam-Hak
Bronze KOR Korea Jeonnam Han Ryo
Bronze KOR Korea Jeonnam Yeosu Chonghae
Bronze KOR Korea Jeonnam Yeosu Ocean
Gold KOR Korea Jeonnam Yeosu Jin Nam
Silver KOR Korea Jeonnam Gwang - Yang Vision
Bronze LAM Latin America Montevideo
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Endowment Fund (EF) 

In 2022/23 Special Development Support allocations were claimed by Korea Area, India Area, Denmark Region and 
Sri Lanka Region for club charters realised during the year. EF money was also used to support the fourth in-person 
International RDE Summit, bringing incoming 2024/25 Area Presidents and Regional Directors together for fellowship, 
brainstorming and training in Vejle, Denmark.

Endowment Fund Friends 

Name Country Area Region Club
Bendigo, Inc. Australia ASP Australia YSC Bendigo, Inc.

Taichung Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC  Taichung

Taichung Everspring Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung Everspring

Taichung Great Vision Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung Great Vision

Keelung Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Keelung

Taipei A-List Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei A-List

Taipei Union Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei Union

Taipei-Alpha Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei-Alpha

Taipei-Beta Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei-Beta

Taipei-Central Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei-Central

Taipei-Downtown Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei-Downtown

Taoyuan Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taoyuan

Kaohsiung Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Kaohsiung

Kaohsiung Forever Young Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Kaohsiung Forever Young

Pingtung-Wandan Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Pingtung-Wandan

Tainan Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Tainan
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Name Country Area Region Club
Jinju Beta-Chok Suk South Korea KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong YMC Jinju Beta-Chok Suk

Ka Ko Pa South Korea KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong YMC Ka Ko Pa

Sae Ma San South Korea KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong YMC Sae Ma San

Gim Hae Jungang South Korea KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong YMWC Gim Hae Jungang

Gim Hae Seven South Korea KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong YMC Gim Hae Seven

Kim-Hae South Korea KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong YMC Kim-Hae

Jeonju Hyuksin South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Hyuksin

Jeonju Moak South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Moak

Jeonju Poongnam South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Poongnam

Jeonju Star South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Star

Jeonju Dahan South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Dahan

Jeonju Hanmaeum South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMWC Jeonju Hanmaeum

Poong Nyeon South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Poong Nyeon

Bisabeol South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Bisabeol

Jeonju Baekje South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Baekje

Jeonju Hanul South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Hanul

Jeonju Nanum South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Nanum

Hanaro South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Hanaro

Hon Bul South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Hon Bul

Jeongeup Nokdu South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC  Jeongeup Nokdu

Jung-Eup South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jung-Eup

Nam Won South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Nam Won

O Chun South Korea KOR Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk YMC O Chun

Sae Taegu South Korea KOR Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk YMC Sae Taegu

Taegu Omega South Korea KOR Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk YMC Taegu Omega

Pyungtaek South Korea KOR Korea Gyeonggi YMC Pyungtaek

Suweon Mae Holl South Korea KOR Korea Gyeonggi YMC Suweon Mae Holl

Suwon South Korea KOR Korea Gyeonggi YMC Suwon

Suwon-Pal Dal South Korea KOR Korea Gyeonggi YMC Suwon-Pal Dal

Bo Seong South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Bo Seong

Cho Seong South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Cho Seong

Mokpo Sam-Hak South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Mokpo Sam-Hak

Kwang Yang - Baek Woun South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Kwang Yang - Baek 
Woun

Yeo Su-Dong Baek South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Yeo Su-Dong Baek

Yeocheon Gu Buk Sun South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Yeocheon Gu Buk Sun

Yeosu ChunMa South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Yeosu ChunMa

Yosu South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Yosu

Chuncheon Omega South Korea KOR Korea Joongang YMC Chuncheon Omega

Kyungki Kwang-ju South Korea KOR Korea Joongang YMC Kyungki Kwang-ju

Gwangju Lilac South Korea KOR Korea South YWC Gwangju Lilac

Chungju South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Chungju

New Dangjin South Korea KOR Korea West YMC New Dangjin

Seosan South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Seosan

Kong Ju South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Kong Ju 35



Name Country Area Region Club
Neul Cheong Chun South Korea KOR Korea West YWC Neul Cheong Chun

New Cheongyang South Korea KOR Korea West YMC New Cheongyang

Sejong South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Sejong

Daejeon Joeun South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Daejeon Joeun

Daejeon Seven South Korea KOR Korea West YMWC Daejeon Seven

Daejeon-Immanuel South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Daejeon-Immanuel

Hanbat Sarang South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Hanbat Sarang

Jung Do South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Jung Do

New - Daejeon South Korea KOR Korea West YMC New - Daejeon

Rachelle Reeg United States USA Mid America YMC Carondelet

David Craytor United States USA Pacific Southwest YSC West Valley

David Freeze United States USA South Atlantic YSC South Rowan

Ray Baker United States USA South Atlantic YSC South Rowan

Paul William Alexander Fellows

Name Country Area Region Club
Numazu Japan ASP Japan East YMC Numazu

Kyoto Global Japan ASP Japan West YMC Kyoto Global 

Taichung - Evergreen Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung - Evergreen

Taichung Ever Flow Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung Ever Flow

Taichung Ever Nice Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung Ever Nice

Taichung EverGrace Taiwan ASP Taiwan YWC Taichung EverGrace

Taichung Everlife Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung Everlife

Taichung Everspring Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung Everspring

Taichung Great Vision Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung Great Vision

Tsaotun Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Tsaotun

Taipei New Century Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei New Century

Taipei-Bridges Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taipei-Bridges

Kaohsiung-The Port Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Kaohsiung-The Port

Benny Kalakudy India IND Mid West India YMC Parathodu

Sajeev K.G. India IND Mid West India YMC Kothamangalam Stars

Roshny Jilish India IND Mid West India YMC Eastend Kochi

Sivan P.A. India IND Mid West India YMC SOS Odakali

Prince M.D. India IND Mid West India YMC Mankulam

E.V. Thankachan India IND Mid West India YMC Parathodu

Biju K. Peter India IND Mid West India YMC Poothrikka

Baiju Varghese India IND Mid West India YMC  Oonnukal

Tom Emmanuel India IND Mid West India YMC  Oonnukal

Shaji Paul India IND Mid West India YMC  Oonnukal

N.V. Thankachan India IND Mid West India YMC  Oonnukal

Joby Paulose India IND Mid West India YMC  Oonnukal

Vivekithan O.K. India IND Mid West India YMC Muvattupuzha Mid 
Town

36



Name Country Area Region Club
Johnson Joseph India IND Mid West India YMC  Ernakulam

Roney Zacharia India IND South Central India YMC Bangalore Downtown

Ravindran T.P. India IND South Central India YMC Bangalore Indira Nagar

Padmakumar India IND South Central India YMC Bangalore Indira Nagar

Jinju John India IND South Central India YMC Bangalore-Peenya

Royal Munroe India IND South West India YMC Royal Munroe

Kunnathoor Royal India IND South West India YMC Kunnathoor Royal

Kollam Kings India IND South West India YMC Kollam Kings

Attingal Royal India IND South West India YMC Attingal Royal

Trivandrum Beacon India IND South West India YMC Trivandrum Beacon

Vattiyoorkav India IND South West India YMC Vattiyoorkav

Marthandam Kings India IND South West India YMC Marthandam Kings

Trivandrum Cosmopolitan India IND South West India YMC Trivandrum 
Cosmopolitan

Raju George Ebrahimkutty India IND South West India YMC Trivandrum North

Ashraf India IND South West India YMC Peroor City

Dileep K. India IND South West India YMC Kollam Kings

Geetha Padmam India IND South West India YMC Attingal Royal

Shaji V. India IND South West India YMC Attingal Jewels

Reeba Jassim India IND South West India YWC Trivandrum Angels

Annu Biji George India IND South West India YWC Trivandrum Lilies

Anitha Thomas India IND South West India YWC Trivandrum Lilies

Justine  Paul India IND South West India YMC Nagarcoil Star

Robert Kennedy India IND South West India YMC Nagercoil New Star

G. Sahaya Prabhu India IND South West India YMC Nagercoil New Star
Dr M.D. Arunmozhi 
Nagnai India IND South West India YMC Kumari Iyal Mantam

Sahitha Raj India IND South West India YWC Marthandam Wings

Mil Yang South Korea KOR Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong YMC Mil Yang

Jeonju Jeonil South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jeonju Jeonil

Jungeup Sam Gol South Korea KOR Korea Chonbuk YMC Jungeup Sam Gol

Taegu Alpha South Korea KOR Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk YMC Taegu Alpha

Suwon Hyo Won South Korea KOR Korea Gyeonggi YMC Suwon Hyo Won

West Pyeong-Taek South Korea KOR Korea Gyeonggi YMC West Pyeong-Taek

Hae Nam Ddang-kut South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Hae Nam Ddang-kut

Mokpo Bipa South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Mokpo Bipa

Gwang - Yang Vision South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YWC Gwang - Yang Vision

Han Ryo South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Han Ryo

Yeosu Chonghae South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Yeosu Chonghae

Yeosu Jin Nam South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Yeosu Jin Nam

Yeosu Ocean South Korea KOR Korea Jeonnam YMC Yeosu Ocean

Eicheun South Korea KOR Korea Joongang YMC Eicheun
Kwang-Ju Mudeung (Moo 
Dung) South Korea KOR Korea South YMC Kwang-Ju Mudeung 

(Moo Dung)
Daejeon-Han Bat South Korea KOR Korea West YMC Daejeon-Han Bat
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Double Paul William Alexander Fellows

Name Country Area Region Club
Sen  George India IND Mid West India YMC Ernakulam

Milson George India IND Mid West India YMC Adimaly/
Bhoothathankettu

P P Venugopal India IND Mid West India YMC SOS Odakali

Rejimon P.V. India IND Mid West India YMC Nirmala Malamury

Honour Roll Members

Name Country Area Region Club
Eldhose Kuriakose India IND Mid West India YMC   Oonnukal

Laiju Philip India IND Mid West India YMC   Oonnukal
Diniesh Mathis & Anitha 
Mathias India IND South Central India	 YMC Coonoor

Baldwin Bruce India IND South West India	 YMC 	 Nagarcoil Star

Golden Book Tributes

Name Country Area Region Club
Chih-Hao Hsieh Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung-EverLIfe

Hsing Chin-Lin Taiwan ASP Taiwan YMC Taichung-EverGrace

David Blenkin Canada CAC Central Western Canada YSC Ottawa
Grete Baekgaard 
Thomsen Denmark EUR Denmark Y's Menettes Club of Lemvig

Bryan Joseph Murphy United States USA Hawaii YMC West Oahu

Duke Jung, Jr United States USA Hawaii YMYWC Hilo

Michael “Mike” Miyah United States USA Hawaii YMYWC Hilo

Reynold Fernandez United States USA Hawaii YMC Kalihi

Stella M.Q.Wong United States USA Hawaii YMYWC Honolulu-Nuuanu 
Daniel Kamahinanahoku 
Maruyama United States USA Hawaii YSC Kaimuki 

Debbie Owens United States USA South Atlantic YSC John R. Mott
Barry Chapman United States USA Pacific Southwest YMC  Inglewood
Ken Nycum United States USA Pacific Southwest YSC Clovis-Fresno
Heart of Horse Therapy 
Ranch United States USA Pacific Southwest YSC Clovis-Fresno

Clinton "Clint" McDonald United States USA Pacific Southwest YSC Clovis-Fresno

Margaret Nadine Hickle United States USA Pacific Southwest Y's Menettes Club of Fresno 
Central
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Roll Back Malaria (RBM)

39

Y's Men International continued its commitment to eradicating malaria by 2030 through the Roll Back Malaria 
(RBM) programme and the 2023/24 fundraising efforts. Re-evaluating  its cuurent engagement with the Global 
Fund, YMI is developing a revised strategy that will increase direct involvement and organisational impact. We 
continue monitoring progress and evaluating programme impact with the support of our global partners, with a 
goal of scaling up our engagement in the coming years.

The Global Fund distributes Long Lasting insecticidal Nets (LLINs) in Cameroon.
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Time of Fast (TOF)

Durning the 2023/24 year, the following projects showed the following results:

TOF 23-01 Cameroon: Environmental Restoration for AdaptationTOF 23-01 Cameroon: Environmental Restoration for Adaptation
Several objectives were achieved for this multifaceted project—planting of fruit and nut trees provided food and 
income while also combating soil erosion. Local farmers were educated on climate change and the importance 
of adaptive and sustainable farming techniques. Three hundred participants were provided basic farming tools 
and learned climate-smart and bio-friendly practices which enhanced their productivity by around 20%.
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TOF 23-03 Burundi: Female Small Business EntrepreneurshipTOF 23-03 Burundi: Female Small Business Entrepreneurship
Beneficiaries were selected and information sessions were held to outline expectations and responsibilities. Two 
income-generating projects were selected for funding using local raw materials produced by the chosen aspiring 
women entrepreneurs. One group is concentrating on the manufacture of soap and the other on pre-packaging 
porridge mixtures made from grains they have grown. 

“This project helps to change my own poor perception, now I see
myself as a valued person who can contribute to the wellness of my

children’’

Angeline,  Project Beneficiary

TOF 21-02 Rwanda: Community Pig FarmingTOF 21-02 Rwanda: Community Pig Farming
TOF 21-02 Rwanda Community Pig Farm total of 18 pigs were purchased and a corresponding piggery to house 
them constructed. Two permanent staff have been engaged to oversee the activities and ensure the health 
and reproduction of the pigs. As of May 2024, 26 piglets had been born and will be distributed to deserving 
households when weaned.
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TOF 22-02 Thailand: Conservation and Restoration of Forest Ecosystems and Sustainable AgricultureTOF 22-02 Thailand: Conservation and Restoration of Forest Ecosystems and Sustainable Agriculture
Both a check dam to slow the flow of water during the rainy season and a fire break to limit the spread of 
wildfires during the dry season were constructed. Trees were planted in the watershed area to help maintain 
soil integrity. Efforts were made to increase awareness of climate change and its impacts using social media 
and other communication tools. There are ongoing efforts to promote organic farming, resulting in better forest 
preservation and sustainable agriculture practices.

TOF 23-05 Myanmar: Sunrise Farm TOF 23-05 Myanmar: Sunrise Farm 
Between 2020 and 2023 at the Suan Luang Ethnic School two computer classrooms were built and equipped 
with 20 new computers and a projector. Computer Science teachers were engaged. In addition, a teacher’s 
lounge and student centre were also constructed. Sports equipment for the pupils was donated. Plans are in 
place to use the surrounding land for vegetable cultivation and animal farming, selling produce and using the 
resulting revenue to support the school. To assist in meeting these goals, vegetable seeds were provided.

42



TOF 19-03 Jamaica: Y’s Hope CampTOF 19-03 Jamaica: Y’s Hope Camp
Key activities accomplished include clearing the land, conducting a topographical survey, organising an on-
site workday, and beginning the erection of tent platforms. Next steps include deciding on the type of camper 
accommodation to be used based on budget and environmental factors, establishing three more water 
harvesting stations and piping water onto the site, as well as selecting animal resistant crops to be grown.

TOF 22-04 Slovakia: Human Resources DevelopmentTOF 22-04 Slovakia: Human Resources Development
In the preliminary stage, focus was placed on the education of young professionals and volunteers at local 
YMCA facilities and strengthening networking and resource sharing among YMCA branches. To address various 
setbacks, such as the tragic death of the General Secretary, new part-time staff was hired. Strategies continue 
to be developed to train and motivate leaders to ensure an optimal summer camp experience for local youth in 
need.

TOF 20-03 Russia: No One Left Behind, Developing Wellbeing for Older PersonsTOF 20-03 Russia: No One Left Behind, Developing Wellbeing for Older Persons
Computer and mobile phone classes for seniors were conducted. Thematic meetings provided education on 
Russian history, architecture, and music. Minor repairs and upgrades were carried out at the dacha, which has 
gained a reputation as being a suitable, sustainable and welcoming venue offering social activities for seniors. 
The project is ongoing, as the YMCA plans to continue running programs for seniors in Nekrasovskoe and 
Ivanovo with help of volunteers motivated after seeing the programme in action.
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“It’s a very surprising feeling for me: after completing the computer literacy courses at 
YMCA Russia, I was no longer afraid of computers. Of course, I still have a lot to learn 

and master. But before the course, I was always afraid of doing something wrong, 
something irreparable. And now I understand that there’s no need to fear mistakes, 
that practice is the best learning. And I started to enjoy learning new things, to try 
to understand how devices and programs work. Many thanks to the attentive and 

patient people from YMCA Russia.

Nadezhda Solovyova, Project Beneficiary

TOF 23-08 India: Quality Education in Rural SchoolsTOF 23-08 India: Quality Education in Rural Schools
A deserving school was identified in impoverished Erumakkad Pathanamthitta. Nine quality wood benches 
and desks were commissioned using local labour and materials, additionally helping the local economy.  The 
benches and desks were successfully delivered and installed on the school grounds, bringing joy to both 
students and teachers.

TOF 22-06 India: Preventative Healthcare among the VulnerableTOF 22-06 India: Preventative Healthcare among the Vulnerable
The Y’s Men’s Club of Panackapalam, in collaboration with the local Gram Panchayat government, meticulously 
selected a qualified teaching staff to facilitate computer training. Five computers, printers and various 
networking components were acquired. Tailoring accessories were procured to support training. An initial 
tailoring programme for 25 students and a computer course for 20 were conducted.
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TOF 23-10 Colombia: Young Entrepreneurs in BogotáTOF 23-10 Colombia: Young Entrepreneurs in Bogotá
Despite significant delays in implementation due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the training programme for the 
next generation of YMCA youth facilitators successfully concluded with a graduation ceremony on 6 May 
2022, inducting 21 (14 girls and 7 boys) as new YMCA youth leaders. During the preceding nine months, 
project participants from around Uruguay attended study camps, engaged in leadership courses, and had the 
opportunity to learn from past and present young leaders.  

TOF 21-08 Chile: Seed capital and Work InsertionTOF 21-08 Chile: Seed capital and Work Insertion
Implemented by the YMCA with the support of the associated Y’s Men’s club, this project’s objective was to 
educate young persons and women on how to develop and run small home-based businesses. Launched in 
March 2022, a series of workshops focusing on bread/ pastry production, metal structures creation and repair, 
as well as general small business development were held. The project culminated on Saturday, 25 March 2023, 
with an emotional award ceremony and delivery of seed capital of approximately CHF 510 to each of the five 
winners.opportunity to learn from past and present young leaders.  

TOF 22-08 USA: Sioux Y Tiny Home & Twig BuildTOF 22-08 USA: Sioux Y Tiny Home & Twig Build
Following an urgent call for volunteer construction workers, by October 2023, 96 dedicated volunteers were 
working on-site. Despite challenges caused by a weakening economy, the YMCA surpassed its fundraising goal, 
raising over USD 270,000 by October 2024.
In 2024, the aim is to secure USD 100,000 from grants and new donors to cover essential components like tiny 
home and Twig furnishings, appliances, solar panels, and outdoor spaces.
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Elmer Crowe Memorial Award
The Elmer Crowe Memorial Award is given annually to our most outstanding District Governors and is assessed on 
performance in the areas of membership extension and conservation, community service engagement, support of 
our international programmes, meetings held.

Area Africa
•	 Africa - 

Area Asia Pacific
•	 Japan East - Fujisan - Hiroshi Enomoto			 
•	 Japan West - Rokkobu - Hiroshi Ide			
•	 Southeast Asia - Hong Kong - Selina Chan			 
•	 Taiwan - Center - Yuan-Heng Wang			 

Awards 
Ballantyne Award
The Ballantyne Award considered YMI’s highest 
honour, was given to PIP Moon Sang-Bong for 
the 2023/24 year.

IP Ulrik Lauridsen decided to present the 
2022/23 Ballantyne Award, not issued in the 
preceding year,  to PICM and long-standing 
Europe Area Secretary, Anne-Marie Hertz-
Jensen.

Awards
Extension Stats

 

Member Stats
Audit Report

Area India
•	 Central Travancore - District 01 (Ctr) - Binu Variyath					   
•	 Central Travancore - District 02 (Ctr) - Mathew George					   
•	 Central Travancore - District 04 (Ctr) - Rosh Chacko					  
•	 Central Travancore - District 05 (Ctr) - Jacob George					   
•	 Central Travancore - District 06 (Ctr) - K M Cheriyan					   
•	 Mid West India - District 02 (Mwir) - Sen George					   
•	 Mid West India - District 06 (Mwir) - Hema Vijayan					  
•	 Mid West India - District 07 (Mwir) - Laiju Philip					   
•	 Mid West India - District 08 (Mwir) - Regimon P. V.					   
•	 Mid West India - District 10 (Mwir) - Venugopal P. P.					   
•	 Middle East - District 02 (Mer) - Tony Joseph					     46
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Area India (cont.)
•	 North, East & Northeast India - District 01 (Neneir) - Parbhat Misra					  
•	 South Central India - District 02 (Scir) - Biju Joseph						   
•	 South India - Madras - Velu K.						    
•	 South India - South Central - Ilammathe Natarajan						    
•	 South India - West - Jeyasurya S.						    
•	 South West India - District 01 (Swir) - Baldwin Bruce						    
•	 South West India - District 02 (Swir) - Alexander G.						   
•	 South West India - District 04 (Swir) - Vinod Rajasekar						    
•	 South West India - District 06 (Swir) - Shaji George						   
•	 South West India - District 08 (Swir) - Suresh Kumar						    
•	 West India - District 03 (Wir) - Isson K. Jose						    

Area Korea
•	 Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong - Kimhae - Kim Han-Su					   
•	 Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk Jeolla - Choi In-Soo					   
•	 Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk Jeonju - Lee Yong-Seon					   
•	 Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk South - Moon Heon-Sik					  
•	 Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk - Kyungbuk West - Bae Oe-Soo					   
•	 Korea Jeonnam - Namhae Seo - Kim Jong-Il					  
•	 Korea Jeonnam - Seohae - Cho Byeong-Guk					   
•	 Korea Jeonnam - Seohae Joong - Choi In-Sung					   
•	 Korea Jeonnam - Suncheon Gwangyang - Jung Woon-Gi					   
•	 Korea Jeonnam - Yeosu - Go Il-Hyeon		
•	 Korea West - Chungnam South - Choi Byung-Jin								      

	
Area Latin America				  

•	 Brazil - Jaraguá - Danielle Queiroz										        
						    

International President’s Award				  
•	 Korea West - Daejeon - An Chang-Hyo									       
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Booster Member Awards
Booster Member Awards are given annually to club members who have sponsored three or more new members 
during the year.

•	 A Dhanapriya (Y Service Club of Erode Cancer Care Youth - South India)
•	 A V RAMAKRISHNAN (Y’s Men’s Club of Trichambaram - West India)
•	 ABRAHAM Francis (Y’s Men’s Club of Chengannur - Central Travancore)
•	 ANILKUMAR A T (Y’s Men’s Club of Pothanicad Diamonds - Mid West India)
•	 ARAYAMA Kenji (Y’s Men’s Club of Kyoto-Tops - Japan West)
•	 BANG jin ye (Y’s Women’s Club of Jeonju Laonjena - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 BENILA Adaline (Y’s Men’s Club of Nanchil Prince Youth - South West India)
•	 BRIG Chandra (Y’s Women’s Club of Marthandam Wings - South West India)
•	 BRUCE Baldwin (Y’s Men’s Club of Nagercoil New Star - South West India)
•	 BYUN Younggoo (Y’s Men’s Club of Gim Hae Seven - Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong)
•	 CHAN Selina (Y’s Men’s Club of Kowloon-Peninsula - Southeast Asia)
•	 CHANG Hsiao-Li (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Ever Flow - Taiwan)
•	 CHEN Hung-Yeh (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung - Taiwan)
•	 CHEN Yu-Chun (Y’s Men’s Club of Taipei-Alpha - Taiwan)
•	 CHIH Tung-Tse (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Great Vision - Taiwan)
•	 CHOI Sooyoung (Y’s Men’s Club of Gim Hae Seven - Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong)
•	 CHOU Po-Yu (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Ever Nice - Taiwan)
•	 DAWN DINEXON B (Y’s Men’s Club of Karamadai - South India)
•	 DONG-HWA Lee (Y’s Men and Women’s Club of Gimhae Ga-Rak - Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong)
•	 G Varghese (Y’s Men’s Club of Green City West Kallada - South West India)
•	 GEORGE Aju (Y’s Men’s Club of Konni - Central Travancore)
•	 GEORGE Bindu (Y’s Men’s Club of Nellimattom Diamonds - Mid West India)
•	 GEORGE Shaji (Y’s Men’s Club of Hail, Saudi Arabia - Middle East)
•	 GEORGE Thomas (Y’s Men’s Club of Adoor - Central Travancore)
•	 GEORGE Ym PWAF James (Y’s Men’s Club of Adoor - Central Travancore)
•	 GUZMAN CASTRO Jean Paul (Y’s Men’s Club of Santa Cruz de la Sierra - Latin America)
•	 HAMATUKA Yushi (Y’s Men’s Club of Morioka - Japan East)
•	 HAN kyeong su (Y’s Men’s Club of Jeonju Myeongmun - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 HARIDASAN Anithakumari (Y’s Men’s Club of Peroor City - South West India)
•	 HORI Yasuyuki (Y’s Men’s Club of Kyoto-Palace - Japan West)
•	 HSIAO Chi-Fang (Y’s Men’s Club of Tsaotun - Taiwan)
•	 HSIEH Hui-Ping (Y’s Men’s Club of Taoyuan - Taiwan)
•	 HSIEH Mei-Chu (Y’s Women’s Club of Taichung EverGrace - Taiwan)
•	 HUANG Chien-Hsun (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Everlife - Taiwan)
•	 HUANG Hsien-Hsi (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Everspring - Taiwan)
•	 HUANG Rui-Yu (Y’s Men’s Club of Taipei New Century - Taiwan)
•	 HUANG Tzu-Chieh (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Ever Flow - Taiwan)
•	 HWANG Won taek (Y’s Men’s Club of Jung-Eup - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 HWANG woong Hyu (Y’s Men’s Club of Han Dheut - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 JAYASHREE K.S. (Y’s Men’s Club of Sathyamangalam - South India)
•	 JOSEPH Tony (Y’s Men’s Club of Fujairah - Middle East)
•	 K PETER Biju (Y’s Men’s Club of Poothrikka - Mid West India)
•	 K shanmuga Priya (Y Service Club of Erode Cancer Care Youth - South India)
•	 KAKEYA Taro (Y’s Men’s Club of Osaka-Ibaraki - Japan West)
•	 KALAKUDIYIL Benny (Y’s Men’s Club of Parathodu - Mid West India)
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•	 KANG Jeongil (Y’s Men’s Club of Gunsan Alpha - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 KANG Seon woo (Y’s Men’s Club of Gunsan Alpha - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 KAO Yuan-Wen (Y’s Men’s Club of Tsaotun - Taiwan)
•	 KESAVAMOORTHY K (Y’s Men’s Club of Punjai Pulliyampatti - South India)
•	 KIIMA Stanley (Y Service Club of Nairobi Metro - Africa Southeast)
•	 KIM bong ju (Y’s Men’s Club of Jeonju Myeongmun - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 KIM Gangsu (Y’s Men’s Club of An Dong - Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk)
•	 KIM hye jin (Y’s Women’s Club of Jeonju Laonjena - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 KIM kyung soon (Y’s Women’s Club of Jeongeup Golden - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 KIM Sun im (Y’s Women’s Club of Jeongeup Golden - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 KIZITO James (Y’s Men’s Club of Kampala - Africa Southeast)
•	 KN SARAVANAN (Y’s Men’s Club of Karaikudi - South India)
•	 KOMATSU Nakafumi (Y’s Men’s Club of Atsugi - Japan East)
•	 KOSHY Joyamma (Y’s Men’s Club of Chengannur - Central Travancore)
•	 KS Balachander (Y’s Men’s Club of Gobichettipalayam - South India)
•	 KUMARAN SADHANANDHAN (Y’s Men’s Club of Elavumthitta Town - Central Travancore)
•	 KUO Lung-Cheng (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Great Vision - Taiwan)
•	 L S Ym Lasan Babu (Y’s Men’s Club of Kollam Cashew City - South West India)
•	 LAN Sheng-Hsi (Y’s Men’s Club of Taipei A-List - Taiwan)
•	 LEE Cheol-Ho (Y’s Men’s Club of Jeonju Star - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 LEE minho (Y’s Men’s Club of Gim Hae Seven - Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong)
•	 LEE Seongguk (Y’s Men’s Club of Jeonju Star - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 LEE Yonggil (Y’s Men’s Club of Pusan Central - Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong)
•	 LI Kuo-Chan (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Ever Nice - Taiwan)
•	 LIANG Yen-Yu (Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Everlife - Taiwan)
•	 LIM Hyeongeum (Y’s Women’s Club of Jeongeup Golden - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 LIM Ju Hyun (Y’s Men’s Club of Jeonju Star - Korea Chonbuk)
•	 LIU Hsiu-Ling (Y’s Men’s Club of Taipei-Alpha - Taiwan)

Booster Club Awards
Booster Club Awards are given to clubs which have increased membership by six or more members in the year.

•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Adoor (INDIA - Central Travancore - District 01 (CTR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Attingal Youth (INDIA - South West India - District 04 (SWIR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Bangalore New City (INDIA - South Central India - Bangalore District 2)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Bangalore Pioneers (INDIA - South Central India - Bangalore District 2)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Bangalore-Jayanagar (INDIA - South Central India - Bangalore District 1)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Chengannur (INDIA - Central Travancore - District 02 (CTR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Dubai (INDIA - Middle East - District 01 (MER))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Dubai Friends (INDIA - Middle East - District 01 (MER))
•	 Y Service Club of GCT Youth Coimbatore (INDIA - South Central India - Uniwest District)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Green Valley Muttom (INDIA - Mid West India - District 06 (MWIR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Gunsan Alpha (KOREA - Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk West)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Hareid og Ulstein (EUROPE - Norway - Møre)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Hedens, Herning (EUROPE - Denmark - Storå)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Inchon-Michuhal (KOREA - Korea Incheon - Incheon)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Jangseong (KOREA - Korea South - Gwangju-Dong)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Jeju Choe Nam Dan (KOREA - Korea Jeju - Cheju District)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Jeju Herb (KOREA - Korea Jeju - Cheju District) 49



•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Jeju Man Deok (KOREA - Korea Jeju - Cheju District)
•	 Y’s Women’s Club of Jeongeup Golden (KOREA - Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk South)
•	 Y’s Women’s Club of Jeonju Laonjena (KOREA - Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk Jeolla)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Jeonju Myeongmun (KOREA - Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk Jeonju)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Jeonju Star (KOREA - Korea Chonbuk - Chunbuk Jeolla)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Ka Ko Pa (KOREA - Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong - Geongnam)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Karaikudi (INDIA - South India - South Central)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Kollam Central (INDIA - South West India - District 06 (SWIR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Kwang-Ju Alpha (KOREA - Korea South - Gwangju-Dong)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Kyoto Able (ASIA PACIFIC - Japan West - Kyoto)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Kyoto Global (ASIA PACIFIC - Japan West - Kyoto)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Kyoto-Palace (ASIA PACIFIC - Japan West - Kyoto)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Madlamark (EUROPE - Norway - Rogaland)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Marthandam Professional (INDIA - South West India - District 01 (SWIR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Mulakuzha (INDIA - Central Travancore - District 02 (CTR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Nedumangad Diamonds (INDIA - South West India - District 02 (SWIR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Oonnukal (INDIA - Mid West India - District 07 (MWIR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Punjai Pulliyampatti (INDIA - South India - West)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Pusan Central (KOREA - Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong - Busan)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Royal Mulavana (INDIA - South West India - District 08 (SWIR))
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Sathyamangalam (INDIA - South India - West)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Stavanger (EUROPE - Norway - Rogaland)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Taichung Ever Flow (ASIA PACIFIC - Taiwan - Center)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Tsaotun (ASIA PACIFIC - Taiwan - Center)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Vantaa (EUROPE - Finland/Balticum - Finland)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Vattiyoorkav (INDIA - South West India - District 02 (SWIR))
•	 Y Service Club of Y-folk Ullandhaug (EUROPE - Norway - Rogaland)

Extension Beyond Borders Awards (EBBA)
The Extension Beyond Borders Award (EBBA) is an international award that recognises and motivates clubs 
and individuals for their initiative and efforts to extend YMI beyond their borders, to other countries and 
territories.

•	 Y Service Club of Ottawa (Canada) - Sponsored the Y Service Club of Bujumbura (Burundi)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Island East - Hong Kong (Hong Kong) - Sponsored the Y’s Men’s Club of Myitkyina 

(Myanmar)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Island East - Hong Kong (Hong Kong) - Sponsored the Y’s Men’s Club of Tawwin, Myanmar 

(Myanmar)
•	 Y Service Club of Lumbini (Nepal) - Sponsored the Y’s Men’s Club of New Territories East (Hong Kong)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Singapore Alpha Chapter (Singapore) - Sponsored the Y Service Club of Johor Eagles 

(Malaysia)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Singapore Alpha Chapter (Singapore) - Sponsored the Y’s Men’s Club of Loikaw (Myanmar)
•	 Y’s Men’s Club of Singapore Alpha Chapter (Singapore) - Sponsored the Y’s Men’s Club of Mandalay 

(Myanmar)
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Independent
In the Chavara block panchayat area, the Ys Men club of Chavara initiated 
a community service project in collaboration with the local palliative 
care unit, under the direction of Kerala’s Health Department. The 
project focuses on providing aid to bedridden, physically and mentally 
challenged patients. Beneficiaries were identified through house visits 
and institutional surveys conducted by a special palliative care team. 
 
Based on these findings, the club has been providing essential supplies, 
including food supplements, medicines, water and air beds, wheelchairs, 
walkers, catheters, urine bags, diapers, and financial assistance. Additionally, 
two selected families receive a one-month food kit every month. The aid 
is distributed in the presence of grama panchayat members, palliative care 
volunteers, Asha workers, and club members. This ongoing initiative, now in 
its third year, has incurred an expenditure of INR 3,60,000 during the YMI 
Year 2023/24.

Collective
The District 2 of the South West India Region (SWIR), in collaboration with the Ys Men Club of Dubai from the Middle East 
Region, undertook a compassionate community service initiative as part of Ys Men 
International’s “Heal the World” programme. The project involved helping a local 
carpenter who suffered a  serious accident in 2010, which  confined him to a wheelchair. 
Recognising his difficult situation, a volunteer team  provided the funds and skills 
to completely renovated his house, providing much-needed improvements to his 
living conditions. 

On 20  April 2024, South West India Regional Director K. Venkatesh officially handed over the keys to the renovated 
house in the presence of District Governor Dr. Alexander G, District Treasurer Ym Thomas Job, and Ym Benny K Mani. This 
act of service is a powerful demonstration of Ys Men International’s commitment to supporting those in need within the 
community.
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Membership Statistics

52

 01 February 2024  01 August 2023
Reported Paid Reported Paid

Clubs Members Members Clubs Members Members
Africa Northwest 28 152 39 28 93 18
Africa Southeast 28 156 119 28 173 72
Sub-total 56 308 158 56 266 90
Australia 7 93 93 8 115 115
Japan East 56 722 722 56 726 726
Japan West 74 1’306 1’306 74 1’281 1’281
Philippines 14 42 0 14 203 197
Southeast Asia 38 437 386 35 528 444
Sri Lanka 7 69 69 7 69 0
Taiwan 26 550 550 26 540 540
Sub-total 222 3’219 3’126 220 3’462 3’303
Caribbean 6 41 25 6 27 15
Central and Western Canada 6 57 57 6 59 59
Maritimes 12 241 241 12 239 239
Sub-total 24 339 323 24 325 313
Central Southern Europe 9 106 106 9 115 115
Denmark 151 3’186 3’186 153 3’222 3’222
Finland/Balticum 7 88 88 11 122 122
Norway 44 1’144 1’144 44 1’181 1’181
Russia 13 79 67 13 78 78
Sub-total 224 4’603 4’591 230 4’718 4’718
Central India 35 322 302 27 251 251
Central Travancore 90 1’103 1’034 84 928 868
Mid West India 112 1’733 1’730 157 1’668 1’485
Middle East 29 438 405 29 414 390
North, East & Northeast India 18 215 191 191 18 191
South Central India 44 516 477 41 474 432
South India 50 763 742 50 658 604
South West India 128 1’539 1’515 122 1’279 1’150
West India 108 858 687 104 1’073 968
Sub-total 614 7’487 7’083 805 6’763 6’339
Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong 28 515 506 27 523 523
Korea Chonbuk 49 1’672 1’672 49 1’683 1’683
Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk 27 441 441 27 445 445
Korea Gyeonggi 12 152 152 12 157 157
Korea Incheon 11 131 131 9 103 103
Korea Jeju 14 312 312 14 304 304
Korea Jeonnam 46 1’478 1’478 47 1’477 1’477
Korea Joongang 7 76 76 13 87 0
Korea Seoul 6 58 58 12 98 98
Korea South 23 468 468 22 467 467
Korea West 22 254 254 21 266 266
Sub-total 245 5’557 5’548 253 5’610 5’523
Brazil 17 109 93 17 130 105
Latin America 16 205 147 16 207 135
Sub-total 33 314 240 33 337 240
Hawaii 8 118 118 9 117 117
Mid America 8 134 134 8 131 131
North Atlantic 9 202 202 9 231 162
North Central 3 38 38 3 43 43
Pacific Northwest 3 19 19 4 22 22
Pacific Southwest 14 164 164 14 168 168
South Atlantic 4 49 49 4 49 49
Sub-total 49 724 724 51 761 692

YMI TOTAL 1’467 22’551 21’793 1’672 22’242 21’218

% OF PAYMENT 96.64% 95.40%

* Payments confirmed by IAM to date  ** Partial report/payments received
 *** No payments received  **** No reports & no payments
When no report received, membership estimated (red) from last known reported membership

IND

KOR

LAM

USA

Y'S MEN INTERNATIONAL
MEMBERSHIP STATISTICS 1 FEBRUARY 2024 AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

    Region

EUR

CAC
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AFR

AREA



Extension Statistics

Y'S MEN INTERNATIONAL

AREA Region Clubs Net Gain Clubs
    30 Jun 2023 Chartered Revived Lost (- Loss) 30 Jun 2024

AFR Africa Northwest 28 0 0 0 0 28
Africa Southeast 27 3 0 0 3 30
Sub-total 55 3 0 0 3 58

ASP Australia 8 0 0 1 -1 7
Japan East 56 0 0 0 0 56
Japan West 77 0 0 3 -3 74
Philippines 14 0 0 0 0 14
Southeast Asia 36 4 0 1 3 39
Sri Lanka 9 2 0 2 0 9
Taiwan 26 0 0 0 0 26
Sub-total 226 6 0 7 -1 225

CAC Caribbean 7 0 0 1 -1 6
Central & Western Canada 6 0 0 0 0 6
Maritimes 12 0 0 0 0 12
Sub-total 25 0 0 1 -1 24

EUR Central Southern Europe 10 0 0 1 -1 9
Denmark 154 2 0 4 -2 152
Finland/Balticum 13 0 0 6 -6 7
Norway 45 0 0 1 -1 44
Russia 13 0 0 0 0 13
Sub-total 235 2 0 12 -10 225

IND Central India 27 8 0 0 8 35
Central Travancore 84 7 0 0 7 91
Mid West India 157 16 0 60 -44 113
Middle East 29 2 0 0 2 31
North, East & Northeast India 17 1 0 0 1 18
South Central India 41 4 0 0 4 45
South India 50 6 0 6 0 50
South West India 122 12 0 0 12 134
West India 104 4 0 0 4 108

KOR Sub-total 631 60 0 66 -6 625
Korea Bu-Ul-Gyeong 31 1 0 4 -3 28
Korea Chonbuk 53 2 0 6 -4 49
Korea Daegu Gyeongbuk 30 3 0 3 0 30
Korea Gyeonggi 12 0 0 0 0 12
Korea Incheon 9 2 0 0 2 11
Korea Jeju 14 0 0 0 0 14
Korea Jeonnam 48 2 0 2 0 48
Korea Joongang 13 0 0 6 -6 7
Korea Seoul 12 0 0 6 -6 6
Korea South 25 1 0 3 -2 23
Korea West 21 1 0 0 1 22

LAM Sub-total 268 12 0 30 -18 250
Brazil 17 0 0 0 0 17
Latin America 16 0 0 0 0 16

USA Sub-total 33 0 0 0 0 33
Hawaii 9 0 0 1 -1 8
Mid America 8 0 0 0 0 8
North Atlantic 9 0 0 0 0 9
North Central 3 0 0 0 0 3
Pacific Northwest 4 0 0 1 -1 3
Pacific Southwest 15 0 0 1 -1 14
South Atlantic 4 0 0 0 0 4

YMI Sub-total 52 0 0 3 -3 49
TOTAL CLUBS 1,525 83 0 119 -36 1,489

NOTE:  Norway Region includes the East Jerusalem and Bethlehem Clubs (independent clubs) in Palestine.
Geneva, 30 June 2024

STATISTICS FOR EXTENSION 2023/24

Changes in number of Clubs 1 July 2023 - 30 June 2024
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Audit Report
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THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
OF Y'S MEN'S CLUBS
Geneva

01.07.2023- 01.07.2022-
30.06.2024 30.06.2023

CHF CHF

ASSETS Notes

Current accounts 1 109 138 1 002 945
Savings accounts 20 387 20 438
Investments 644 291 862 369
Endowment savings account 498 939

1 774 313 1 886 691

Endowment investments 3 088 580 2 782 857
3 088 580 2 782 857

Accounts receivable 0 300
0 300

 
Prepayments 10 726 55 103

10 726 55 103

IHQ Office 1 354 827 1 277 365
1 354 827 1 277 365

TOTAL ASSETS 6 228 446 6 002 315

LIABILITIES, FUNDS AND EQUITY

Suppliers 30 122 29 165
Vacation provision 90 000 90 000
Sub-total current liabilities 120 122 119 165

Restricted funds 1 760 628 1 806 038
Sub-total Restricted Funds 1 760 628 1 806 038

Restricted Funds - Endowment 2 947 402 2 679 132
Total Endowment Fund 2 947 402 2 679 132

 
General Reserve Fund 1 397 981 1 390 921
Operating surplus/(deficit) 2 313 7 060
Total Equity 1 400 294 1 397 981

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUNDS AND EQUITY 6 228 446 6 002 315

Balance Sheet as at
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THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
OF Y'S MEN'S CLUBS
Geneva
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0 300
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Vacation provision 90 000 90 000
Sub-total current liabilities 120 122 119 165

Restricted funds 1 760 628 1 806 038
Sub-total Restricted Funds 1 760 628 1 806 038
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Operating surplus/(deficit) 2 313 7 060
Total Equity 1 400 294 1 397 981

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUNDS AND EQUITY 6 228 446 6 002 315

Balance Sheet as at

THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION
OF Y'S MEN'S CLUBS
Geneva

01.07.2023- 01.07.2022-
Statement of operations for the period 30.06.2024 30.06.2023

(12 months) (12 months)

Notes CHF CHF

OPERATING INCOME
                                                              
International Dues            
Arrears                       1 558 780
1st Semester                  376 985 396 197
2nd Semester                  382 428 405 519
Total International Dues      760 970 802 495
                                                              
Administrative Support                                        
                                                              
BF Support                    
BF Administration             4 349 5 759
International Officers Travel 0 10 000
Total BF Support              4 349 15 759
                                                              
TOF Support                                                   
TOF Administration            6 525 11 949
Total TOF Support             6 525 11 949
                                                              
ASF Support                                                   
ASF Administration            739 1 368
Total ASF Support             739 1 368
                                                              
EF Support                                                    
EF Administration             3 286 4 079
In Lieu of Rent               30 000 30 000
SDS for Extension & RDE Summit support 50 000 50 000
Total EF Support              83 286 84 079
                                                              
Miscellaneous                                                 
Charter Fees                  900 7 351
Miscellaneous                 10 496 8 324
Total Miscellaneous           11 396 15 675
                                                              
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME        867 265 931 326
                                                              
OPERATING EXPENSES                                            
                                                              
Salaries and Benefits                                         
Salaries                      438 799 427 184
AVS and AC Swiss NI           30 209 29 472
AMAT Maternity Insurance      179 185
AF Family Allowance           10 470 10 448
LAA Accident Insurance        3 539 3 516
APG Salary Loss Insurance     6 064 5 696
LPP Pension Scheme            56 368 54 878
Sickness YMI Contribution     9 399 8 786
Personnel Alowances 5 040 5 948
Total Salaries and Benefits   560 067 546 114
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Notes CHF CHF

IHQ Operating Costs                                           
Staff Travel 21 329 13 208
Admin & Personnel costs 1 661 4 559
Management & Heating 4 838 16 740
IHQ office works provision 9 660 9 660
Office Insurances 1 128 844
Postage & Courrier 798 1 421
Telephone, Fax and Internet 3 574 3 851
Electricity and others 770 84
Printing, Duplicating         8 026 8 804
Maintenance of Equipment      0 1 178
Website & Database            14 265 13 503
Total IHQ Operating Costs     110 502 90 966
                                                              
Satellite Office                              
Office Rent & Maintenance 4 908 5 830
Office Furniture, Supplies 0 844
Foundation costs 0 61
Foundation contribution  0 10 403
Total Satellite Office        4 908 17 138
                                                              
International Officers                                        
Genl travel upon IP's approval 0 5 228
International President       6 780 5 687
International President-Elect 5 304 5 371
Past International President  2 657 3 724
International Treasurer       6 027 1 850
International Treasurer Elect 2 575 2 112
Total International Officers  23 343 23 972
                                                              
Int'l Service Directors                                       
ISD - Public Relations        0 0
Total Int'l Service Directors 0 0
                                                              
YL, Historian, Committees, etc                                 
Y's Men Liaison to WA         0 0
Int'l Accounts Managers       1 934 785
Total Committees, Task Forces 1 934 785
                                                              
International Council Meeting                                 
Travel to ICM                 34 615 11 998
Board/lodging at ICM          0 46 362
Local Expenses at ICM         32 808 8 675
ICM/ISD to Int. Conventions   0 0
Total Int'l Council Meeting   67 423 67 034
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Y's Men's World                                               
Printing                      3 099 1 377
Mailing                       1 241 3 878
Translating                   8 599 8 364
Miscellaneous                 0 12 294
Total Y's Men's World         12 939 25 913

                              
Subscriptions & Sponsorships  
Sponsorships 0 0
YMCA USA Archives             1 730 2 401
Total Subscriptions & Sp'ships 1 730 2 401
                              
Spec Programs & Contingencies 
                              
Special Programs              
TW22 Towards 2022             0 0
Extension/(SDS)    24 999 13 531
International RDE Summit 51 667 30 422
YMI Promotion 0 0
Total Special Programmes      76 665 43 953
                              
Contingencies                 
Awards, plaques, gifts, etc   1 565 3 313
IHQ Discretionary/Hospitality 2 188 2 088
IHQ Equipment depreciation 4 465 0
Total Contingencies           8 218 5 400
                              
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES      867 729 823 677
                              
SUB-TOTAL OPERATING RESULT    -464 107 649
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Financial Income & Expenses   

Financial income              
GF Bank Interest              44 052 44 491
GF Portfolio UnRealized       
GF Portfolio Realized       
GF Exchange revaluation gain  79 554 15 861
Total Financial Income        123 605 60 351,66
                              
Financial expenses            
Bank charges                  24 802 3 347
GF Exchange revaluation loss  96 025 157 593
Total Financial Expenses      120 828 160 941
                              
Total Financial Income & Exp. 2 778 -100 589 
                              
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR prior to allocations 2 313 7 060

(Allocation) / Withdrawal to unrestricted operating and
capital funds
General reserve fund -2 313 -7 060 

NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR after allocations 0 0
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Notes CHF CHF
                                                              
Financial Income & Expenses   

Financial income              
GF Bank Interest              44 052 44 491
GF Portfolio UnRealized       
GF Portfolio Realized       
GF Exchange revaluation gain  79 554 15 861
Total Financial Income        123 605 60 351,66
                              
Financial expenses            
Bank charges                  24 802 3 347
GF Exchange revaluation loss  96 025 157 593
Total Financial Expenses      120 828 160 941
                              
Total Financial Income & Exp. 2 778 -100 589 
                              
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR prior to allocations 2 313 7 060

(Allocation) / Withdrawal to unrestricted operating and
capital funds
General reserve fund -2 313 -7 060 

NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR after allocations 0 0
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Statement of operations for the period 30.06.2024 30.06.2023

(12 months) (12 months)

CHF CHF
                                                               
BF Income                                                      
BF Contributions   - Income   43 486 57 103
BF Sale of stamps - Income    0 491
Total BF income               43 486 57 594
                                                              
Total BF Income               43 486 57 594
                                                              
Support to Operating Account                                  
BF Administration             4 349 5 759
BF Int'l Officers Travel      0 10 000
Total Supp. Operating Account 4 349 15 759
                                                              
BF Delegates                                                  
BF Partial Grants to Area Conv 10 334 5 813
BF Full Grants 0 3 532
Travel Carbon offset 0 3 376
Total BF Delegates            10 334 12 721
                                                              
Travel Intitiated at Area Disc                                 
Travel at Area Discretion     11 519 14 892
Total Travel at Area Discr.   11 519 14 892
                              
Other Travel and Assistance                                 
BF Promotion of Partnership 0 0
BF Youth Convocation          0 0
Total Other Travel & Assistanc 0 0
                                                              
Total BF Expenses             26 201 43 372
                                                              
BF movements to b/s                                           
BF total income               43 486 57 594
BF total expenses             (26 201) -43 372 
Total BF movements to b/s     17 285 14 222
                                                              
TOTAL BROTHERHOOD FUND        0 0
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CHF CHF
                                                               
TIME OF FAST                                                  
                                                              
TOF Income                                                    
TOF Contributions - Income    65 254 119 494
Total TOF Contributions       65 254 119 494
                                                              
Total TOF income              65 254 119 494
                                                              
TOF International Leaders                                     
TOF Administration            6 525 11 949
Total TOF Int'l Leaders       6 525 11 949
                                                              
TOF Current Year Projects                                     
TOF Current Year Support - Exp 115 871 97 374
TOF Current Year Projects     115 871 97 374
                                                              
Total TOF expenses            122 397 109 323
                                                              
TOF movements to b/s                                          
TOF total income              65 254 119 494
TOF total expenses            (122 397) -109 323 
Total TOF movements to b/s    (57 143) 10 170
                                                              
TOTAL TIME OF FAST GLOBAL PROJECT 0 0
                                                              
ALEXANDER SCHOLARSHIP FUND                                    
                                                              
ASF Income                                                    
ASF Contributions - Income    7 389 13 676
Total ASF contributions       7 389 13 676
                                                              
Total ASF income              7 389 13 676
                                                              
ASF Expenses                                                  
ASF Administration - Exp      739 1 368
ASF Current Year Support - Exp 10 000 10 000
Total ASF Support             10 739 11 368
                                                              
Total ASF expenses            10 739 11 368
                                                              
ASF movements to b/s                                          
ASF total income              7 389 13 676
ASF total expenses            (10 739) -11 368 
Total ASF movements to b/s    (3 350) 2 308
                                                              
TOTAL ALEXANDER SCHOLARSHIP FD 0 0
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CHF CHF
                                                               
TIME OF FAST                                                  
                                                              
TOF Income                                                    
TOF Contributions - Income    65 254 119 494
Total TOF Contributions       65 254 119 494
                                                              
Total TOF income              65 254 119 494
                                                              
TOF International Leaders                                     
TOF Administration            6 525 11 949
Total TOF Int'l Leaders       6 525 11 949
                                                              
TOF Current Year Projects                                     
TOF Current Year Support - Exp 115 871 97 374
TOF Current Year Projects     115 871 97 374
                                                              
Total TOF expenses            122 397 109 323
                                                              
TOF movements to b/s                                          
TOF total income              65 254 119 494
TOF total expenses            (122 397) -109 323 
Total TOF movements to b/s    (57 143) 10 170
                                                              
TOTAL TIME OF FAST GLOBAL PROJECT 0 0
                                                              
ALEXANDER SCHOLARSHIP FUND                                    
                                                              
ASF Income                                                    
ASF Contributions - Income    7 389 13 676
Total ASF contributions       7 389 13 676
                                                              
Total ASF income              7 389 13 676
                                                              
ASF Expenses                                                  
ASF Administration - Exp      739 1 368
ASF Current Year Support - Exp 10 000 10 000
Total ASF Support             10 739 11 368
                                                              
Total ASF expenses            10 739 11 368
                                                              
ASF movements to b/s                                          
ASF total income              7 389 13 676
ASF total expenses            (10 739) -11 368 
Total ASF movements to b/s    (3 350) 2 308
                                                              
TOTAL ALEXANDER SCHOLARSHIP FD 0 0
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(12 months) (12 months)

Notes CHF CHF
                                                              
ROLL BACK MALARIA                                             
                                                              
RBM Income                                                    
RBM Roll Back Malaria Income  19 736 42 334
Total RBM contributions       19 736 42 334
                                                              
Total RBM income              19 736 42 334
                                                              
RBM Expenses                                                  
RBM Expenses                  0 99 970
Total RBM support             0 99 970
                                                              
Total RBM expenses            0 -99 970 
                                                              
RBM movements to b/s                                          
RBM total income              19 736 42 334
RBM total expenses            0 -99 970 
Total RBM movements to b/s    19 736 -57 636 
                                                              
TOTAL ROLL BACK MALARIA FUND  0 0
                                                              
Y'S EXTENSION SUPPORT                                         
                                                              
YES Income                                                    
YES Contributions             439 854
Total YES contributions       439 854
                                                              
Total YES income              439 854
                                                              
YES Expenses                                                  
Reimbursement to Areas 2/3rds 452 0
Total YES support             452 0
                                                              
Total YES expenses            452 0
                                                              
YES movements to b/s                                          
YES total income              439 854
YES total expenses            (452) 0
YES total movements to b/s    (13) 854
                                                              
TOTAL YS EXTENSION SUPPORT    0 0
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OTHER FUNDS                                                   
                                                              
Other Funds Income                                            
Africa Area Funds income      3 617 508
LAM Area & Regional income    1 927 475
PIP Club income               0 69
Youth Convocation income 0 0
Y's Menettes General income   990 4 056
Y's Menettes Intl Proj income 7 904 752
Environmental Project income 69 1 000
PWA Legacy Project income 0 113 209
Centenary income 0 12 738
Heal the world income 90 24 959
Total Other Funds contribution 14 598 157 765
                                                              
Total Other Funds income      14 598 157 765

                                                              
Other Funds expenses                                          
Africa Area Funds expenses    1 938 5 120
LAM Area & Regional expenses  0 5 533
Youth Convocation expenses 4 934 23 283
Youth Fund expenses 0 0
PIP Club expenses 305 165
Ys Menettes General expenses  0 0
Ys Menettes Intl Proj expenses 0 2 950
Environmental Project expenses 522 1 000
PWA Legacy Project expenses 12 000 22 818
Centenary expenses 16 824 21 139
Heal the world expenses 0 5 000
Total Other Funds expenses    36 523 86 008
                                                              
Total Other Funds expenses    36 523 86 008
                                                              
Other Funds movements to b/s                                  
Other Funds total income      14 598 157 765
Other Funds total expenses    (36 523) -86 008 
Other Funds movements to b/s  (21 925) 71 757
                                                              
TOTAL OTHER FUNDS             0 0
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OTHER FUNDS                                                   
                                                              
Other Funds Income                                            
Africa Area Funds income      3 617 508
LAM Area & Regional income    1 927 475
PIP Club income               0 69
Youth Convocation income 0 0
Y's Menettes General income   990 4 056
Y's Menettes Intl Proj income 7 904 752
Environmental Project income 69 1 000
PWA Legacy Project income 0 113 209
Centenary income 0 12 738
Heal the world income 90 24 959
Total Other Funds contribution 14 598 157 765
                                                              
Total Other Funds income      14 598 157 765

                                                              
Other Funds expenses                                          
Africa Area Funds expenses    1 938 5 120
LAM Area & Regional expenses  0 5 533
Youth Convocation expenses 4 934 23 283
Youth Fund expenses 0 0
PIP Club expenses 305 165
Ys Menettes General expenses  0 0
Ys Menettes Intl Proj expenses 0 2 950
Environmental Project expenses 522 1 000
PWA Legacy Project expenses 12 000 22 818
Centenary expenses 16 824 21 139
Heal the world expenses 0 5 000
Total Other Funds expenses    36 523 86 008
                                                              
Total Other Funds expenses    36 523 86 008
                                                              
Other Funds movements to b/s                                  
Other Funds total income      14 598 157 765
Other Funds total expenses    (36 523) -86 008 
Other Funds movements to b/s  (21 925) 71 757
                                                              
TOTAL OTHER FUNDS             0 0
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Notes CHF CHF
                                                              
ENDOWMENT FUND                                                
                                                              
EF Income                                                     
EF Contributions - Income     32 855 40 793
Total EF Contributions        32 855 40 793
                                                              
EF Total Income               32 855 40 793
                                                              
EF Expenses                                                   
EF Administration             3 286 4 079
EF In lieu of rent            30 000 30 000
SDS Support                   25 000 25 000
EF Awards, Icebergs, other exp 3 865 2 250
EF Bnk charges 329 0
RDE Summit support 25 000 25 000
Total EF Expenses             87 480 86 329
                                                              
Sub-total EF surplus/(deficit)  (54 625) -45 537 
                                                              
Portfolio gains                                               
EF Bank Interest & Dividends  47 076 58 662
EF Portfolio Realized Gain    305 910 3 786
EF Portfolio UnRealized Gain  19 686 166 988
EF Exchange Revaluation Gain  0 7
Total EF Portofolio gains     372 672 229 443
                                                              
EF Portfolio losses                                           
EF Portfolio UnRealized Loss  26 300 76 500
EF Exchange Revaluation Loss  23 478 58 501
EF total Portfolio losses     49 777 135 001
                                                              
Sub-total Portfolio surplus 322 895 94 441
                                                              
Sub-total EF surplus 268 270 48 905
                                                              
EF movements to b/s                                           
EF total income               405 527 270 235
EF total expenses             137 257 221 331
EF total movements to b/s     268 270 48 905
                                                              
TOTAL ENDOWMENT FUND          0 0
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CHF CHF

Cash flow from operations

Operating surplus/deficit 2 313 7 060
Equipment depreciation 4 465 0

(Net gain) / net loss from disposal of financial assets (305 723) (309 190)
Increase / (decrease) of provision 0 0
(Increase) / decrease in receivable 300 0
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments 44 377 (15 553)
(Increase) / decrease in rental guarantee 0 0
Increase / (decrease) in suppliers 956 12 720
Increase / (decrease) in account payable 0 0

Cash flow from operations (257 777) (304 963)

Cash flow from financing investments
Increase / (decrease) in financial assets (77 462) (269 275)

Cash flow from financing investments (77 462) (269 275)

Cash flow from financing activities
Increase / (decrease) in restricted funds 222 861 90 580

Cash flow from financing activities 222 861 90 580

Increase / decrease in cash (112 378) (483 658)

Increase / decrease in cash
Closing balance of cash 30.06.2023/30.06.2022 1 886 691 2 370 348
Closing balance of cash 30.06.2024/30.06.2023 1 774 313 1 886 691
Increase / decrease in cash (112 378) (483 658)
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CHF CHF

Cash flow from operations

Operating surplus/deficit 2 313 7 060
Equipment depreciation 4 465 0

(Net gain) / net loss from disposal of financial assets (305 723) (309 190)
Increase / (decrease) of provision 0 0
(Increase) / decrease in receivable 300 0
(Increase) / decrease in prepayments 44 377 (15 553)
(Increase) / decrease in rental guarantee 0 0
Increase / (decrease) in suppliers 956 12 720
Increase / (decrease) in account payable 0 0

Cash flow from operations (257 777) (304 963)

Cash flow from financing investments
Increase / (decrease) in financial assets (77 462) (269 275)

Cash flow from financing investments (77 462) (269 275)

Cash flow from financing activities
Increase / (decrease) in restricted funds 222 861 90 580

Cash flow from financing activities 222 861 90 580

Increase / decrease in cash (112 378) (483 658)

Increase / decrease in cash
Closing balance of cash 30.06.2023/30.06.2022 1 886 691 2 370 348
Closing balance of cash 30.06.2024/30.06.2023 1 774 313 1 886 691
Increase / decrease in cash (112 378) (483 658)
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Notes to the financial statements as at June 30, 2024

1 Applied accounting principles

1,1 Swiss GAAP FER (Accounting and Reporting Recommandations)

1,2 Closure date

1,3 Accounting principles

1,4 Current accounts and savings

1,5 Investments

1,6 Receivables and prepayments

1,7 Accounts payable, current liabilities, funds

1,8 Accounting policy on land and building

2 Conversion of foreign currency positions

The conversion of positions recorded in foreign currencies is performed using the current rate
method. All assets are converted at the exchange rate as at the balance sheet date. Transactions in
foreign currencies are converted at the exchange rate on the day of the transaction. The effects of
the changes in foreign currencies are registered in the profit and loss account.

The financial statements are in compliance with Core SWISS GAAP FER, principally the SWISS 
GAAP FER 21. The balance sheet as at June 30, 2024 and as at June 30, 2023 complies with the 
Core SWISS GAAP FER.

The closing date is June 30, 2024. The period consists of 12 months.

The accounting, the balance sheet, the operating statement, the cash flow statement, the statement
of change in capital, the notes and the accounting principles are in accordance with the articles 60
and other relevant sections of the Swiss Civil Code.

Current assets are valued at per value less impairment, if any.
Several operating bank accounts are held in India in rupees for an equivalent amount of CHF
384'506,02. Due to monetary easing in India, concerning international membership dues and EF
subscription, some funds are now able to be transferred out of India, providing that itemized proof
of members is submitted. The amounts are confirmed by local accountants.

They represent portfolios of shares and bonds managed by Pictet Asset Management SA.
Funds held in India are in fixed deposits account in South Indian Bank and Federal Bank of India.
Interests are used to compensate the devaluation of the rupees.

Investments are valued at actual values.

Receivables and prepayments are valued at per value less impairment, if any.

All these items are valued at per value less impairment, if any. 

The depreciation is not applied for land and building
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3. Details of different items

3.1 Restricted funds

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
  CHF   CHF

Brotherhood Fund 311 795 294 510
Time of Fast Fund 337 523 394 666
ASF Alexander Scholarship Fund 30 430 33 780
Y's Extension Support Fund 36 022 36 035
RMB Roll Back Malaria Fund 264 658 244 922
Africa Area Funds 5 080 3 401
ACCSF - Alex. Cent. Comm. Sch. Fund 7 667 7 667
C/S Europe funds 6 214 6 214
Current Payable Donations -1 252 -1 252
Latin America Area & Regional 9 718 7 791
PIP Club 6 943 7 248
Short Term Exchange Prog. 2 712 2 712
Youth Education Exchange Program Fund 7 198 7 198
Youth Convocation  Funds 42 676 47 610
Youth Funds -5 -5
Y's Menettes General Fund 42 885 41 894
Y's Menettes Int'l Projects 25 676 17 771
Stop TB 351 351
Environmental Project Fund 12 050 12 503
PWA Legacy Project Fund 433 574 445 574
Centenary Fund 55 977 72 801
Heal the world Fund 122 737 122 647
Restricted funds 1 760 628 1 806 038

3.2 Restricted Endowment fund

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
CHF CHF

Endowment Fund 2 947 402 2 679 132

The funds arised from different donations, they are to be used for clearly defined and restricted 

These funds are composed by :

Restricted endowment fund is used for a limited purpose.
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3. Details of different items

3.1 Restricted funds

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
  CHF   CHF

Brotherhood Fund 311 795 294 510
Time of Fast Fund 337 523 394 666
ASF Alexander Scholarship Fund 30 430 33 780
Y's Extension Support Fund 36 022 36 035
RMB Roll Back Malaria Fund 264 658 244 922
Africa Area Funds 5 080 3 401
ACCSF - Alex. Cent. Comm. Sch. Fund 7 667 7 667
C/S Europe funds 6 214 6 214
Current Payable Donations -1 252 -1 252
Latin America Area & Regional 9 718 7 791
PIP Club 6 943 7 248
Short Term Exchange Prog. 2 712 2 712
Youth Education Exchange Program Fund 7 198 7 198
Youth Convocation  Funds 42 676 47 610
Youth Funds -5 -5
Y's Menettes General Fund 42 885 41 894
Y's Menettes Int'l Projects 25 676 17 771
Stop TB 351 351
Environmental Project Fund 12 050 12 503
PWA Legacy Project Fund 433 574 445 574
Centenary Fund 55 977 72 801
Heal the world Fund 122 737 122 647
Restricted funds 1 760 628 1 806 038

3.2 Restricted Endowment fund

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
CHF CHF

Endowment Fund 2 947 402 2 679 132

The funds arised from different donations, they are to be used for clearly defined and restricted 

These funds are composed by :

Restricted endowment fund is used for a limited purpose.

3.3 Salaries and social charges

The details are the following :
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

CHF CHF

Salaries 560 067 546 114
560 067 546 114

The number of employees is less than 50.
International Executive Officers and International Council Members are doing a volunteer work.

3.4 Satellite Office Chiang Mai
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

CHF CHF

Foundation contribution 0 0
Office Rent & Maintenance 4 908 5 830
Postage & Courrier            0 0
Office furniture              0 844
PC, Printer, etc              0 0
Wifi, telephone, copy machine 0 61
Foundation costs 0 10 403
Total Satellite Office         4 908 17 138

3.5 Affectation of the investments in relation to the Endowment Fund

Assets Liabilities Excess of
value value liabilities
CHF CHF CHF

June 30, 2023 2 783 796 2 679 132 104 665

June 30, 2024 3 089 078 2 947 402 141 676
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4 Performance report

4.1 Purpose and objectives

4.2 Legal Status date

4.3 International Executive Committee 

International President Mr A. Shanvaskhan Area India
International Treasurer Mr Erik Breum Area Europe
Immediate Past International President Mr Ulrik Lauridsen Area Europe
Employed Officers
International Secretary General Mr Jose Varghese International Headquarters Office

- To function primarily as Service Clubs for the YMCA

The International Association of Y's Men's Clubs is a worlwide fellowship of persons of all faiths working
together in mutual respect and affection, based on the teaching of Jesus Christ, and with a common loyalty to
the Young Men's Christian Association, striving through active service to develop, encourage and provide
leadership to build a better world for all mankind.

The objectives of the Association are the following:
- To encourage, promote and foster organisation and maintenance of affiliated clubs throughout the world.
- To coordinate activities of all affiliated Clubs and provide training material and personal leadership
development.

The objectives of all affiliated Clubs are:

He is working in Geneva.

- To support other worthy organisations
- To encourage justice in civic and international affairs, abstaining always from political parties.
- To keep members informed on and actively involved in religious, civic, economic, social and international
matters
- To support International, Area and Regional projects of the Association

The International Constitution and Guidelines have been adopted at the International Convention in 1972 and
ratified at the International Convention in 1973. Officially in force from June 1, 1974, they were amended the
last time in 2024.

The International Secretary General is responsible of the financial sector of the Association.
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4 Performance report

4.1 Purpose and objectives

4.2 Legal Status date

4.3 International Executive Committee 

International President Mr A. Shanvaskhan Area India
International Treasurer Mr Erik Breum Area Europe
Immediate Past International President Mr Ulrik Lauridsen Area Europe
Employed Officers
International Secretary General Mr Jose Varghese International Headquarters Office

- To function primarily as Service Clubs for the YMCA

The International Association of Y's Men's Clubs is a worlwide fellowship of persons of all faiths working
together in mutual respect and affection, based on the teaching of Jesus Christ, and with a common loyalty to
the Young Men's Christian Association, striving through active service to develop, encourage and provide
leadership to build a better world for all mankind.

The objectives of the Association are the following:
- To encourage, promote and foster organisation and maintenance of affiliated clubs throughout the world.
- To coordinate activities of all affiliated Clubs and provide training material and personal leadership
development.

The objectives of all affiliated Clubs are:

He is working in Geneva.

- To support other worthy organisations
- To encourage justice in civic and international affairs, abstaining always from political parties.
- To keep members informed on and actively involved in religious, civic, economic, social and international
matters
- To support International, Area and Regional projects of the Association

The International Constitution and Guidelines have been adopted at the International Convention in 1972 and
ratified at the International Convention in 1973. Officially in force from June 1, 1974, they were amended the
last time in 2024.

The International Secretary General is responsible of the financial sector of the Association.

THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION
OF Y'S MEN'S CLUBS
Geneva

Notes to the financial statements as at June 30, 2024

4.4 International Council Members (ICMs 2024/25)

The International Council Members are the following :

Africa Mr Beswell Mathew Mpempulwa

Asia Ms Yan Yan (Joan) Wong

Canada / Carribean Dr Sandra R. Hamilton

Europe Mr Jens Byskov
Ms Mila Pavlova
Mr Ådne Wesnes

 
India Mr Nithin J.R.

Mr Pilson Louis
Mr Thomas Lukose P.
Mr V.S. Radhakrishnan

Korea Mr Han Il-wook
Mr Park Cha-sang
Mr Park Jong-an

Latin America Mrs Mery Castro de Guzman

United States of America Mr Douglas Jones

World Alliance of YMCAs Mr Ronald Yam

Members of International Council are not paid for their work within the association
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THE INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION
OF Y'S MEN'S CLUBS
Geneva

4.5 Auditor 

4.6 Accounting 
Accounting is held by the staff of Y's Men in Geneva.
 

4.7 Objectives 
An annual budget is prepared by the International Executive Officers.

4.8 Tax exemption

The International Association of Y's Men's Clubs is exempted from Federal Tax.
The International Association of Y's Men's Clubs is also exempted from the Cantonal 
& Communal Taxes for a indefinite period from the 2018 fiscal year.

4.9 Leasing obligations

The association has leasing obligations of CHF 7'875 as at June 30, 2024.

CF - Compagnie fiduciaire de révision SA, Boulevard des Philosophes 17, Geneva, are the Auditors in 
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In Memoriam

Mr Ernest W. Grilk
25 July 1929 – 9 February 2022 (92 years)
United States

International Council Member 1975/78
*passed away last year but death only advised to IHQ in”2023/24.

PIP Lasse Bergstedt
27 April 1945 – 24 July 2023 (78 years)
Denmark

82nd International President 2007/08
International Council Member 2004/07
Europe Area President 2005/06

Mrs Kay Lindner
17 December 1925 – 16 September 2023 (97 years)
United States

International Council Member 2002/04
United States Area President 2002/03

Mr Gene Koester
12 October 1940 – 12 November 2023 (83 years)
United States

Area Treasurer 2011/19
Endowment Fund Trustee 2017/23

PIP Rachelle Reeg
10 July 1933 – 15 December 2023 (90 years)
United States

65th International President 1990/91
International Council Member 1986/89
Area President 1987/88
First female International President
Harry M. Ballantyne Award 2011

It was great sorrow that the YMI movement shares the passing of the following international 
leaders in 2023/24. We wish them eternal peace and our thoughts are with their families. 
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PIP David G. Morris
21 October 1935 – 4 February 2024 (88 years)
Canada

71st International President (1996/97)
International Council Member (1993/95)
Area President (1993/95)

Mr David W. Craytor
10 February 1932 – 3 February 2024 (91 years)
United States

Endowment Fund Trustee 2012/17
Area  Treasurer 2005/11
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